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Honorable members of the General Assembly of Amman 
Stock Exchange 

First of all I would like to welcome you to this annual meeting with your 
esteemed general assembly and wish everybody a happy new year 
full of grace and bounties both for us and for our beloved country. May 
Allah bless our King and people, and keep them safe. 

It is my pleasure to have a look, together, at the achievements of the 
Amman Stock Exchange (ASE) in 2013 and its future outlook. We are 
looking to hear your insights and views to develop our institution. 

Dear Members,

The ASE has witnessed an improvement in its performance in 2013 
compared with 2012; it has marked the first, in six years, positive 
performance of the ASE price index despite the economic conditions 
and the surrounding political circumstances in the Arab region. In 
2013, the trading volume at the ASE amounted to JD3 billion with 2.7 
billion traded shares executed within 1.1 million transactions. The ASE 
price index went up to 2065.8 points, an increase by 5.5%. The market 
value of listed companies reached JD18.2 billion, thus, constituting 
83% of Gross Domestic Product (GDP). 

It is worth mentioning that the new structure of classifying the markets 
into three segments which was introduced by the end of 2012 has 
had a positive impact on the ASE as a whole. This effect has been 
witnessed since the beginning of 2013. The increasing confidence of 
both local and international investors in the Jordanian Capital Market 
has, largely, contributed to the positive performance of the ASE. The 
non-Jordanian ownership maintained its levels to around 50% of the 
market value of the ASE. This level of foreign ownership is an indicator 
that these investments are long-term investments based on strategic 
partnerships with the Jordanian investors. The economic and political 
conditions that still affecting the region have no negative impact on 
these investments.

The ASE persisted in delivering on further achievements and projects at 
various levels to advance its position among regional and international 
markets. 

Chairman’s Statement
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The ASE reviewed and amended some internal regulations and 
bylaws. In coordination with the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC), 
the ASE enacted regulations required for listing and trading of Islamic 
Sukuk, in addition to the approval and implementation of its personnel 
bylaw for 2013 and endorsement of all instructions and principles 
based thereon. 

The ASE signed a letter of intent to contract with NYSE Technology 
within a joint venture with Muscat, Beirut, and Tunisia Exchanges. This 
letter is a preliminary step leading to signing the final contracts aimed 
at implementing the new version of the trading system (Hybrid). This 
version is distinct for a variety of technical and functional features. 

The ASE has already launched (ASELIVE) Platform to enable its users 
to monitor trading through smart phones and follow their investments 
live. 

The ASE has further engaged with brokerage firms wishing to provide 
the e-trading service for their clients. Two brokerage firms were certified 
by the JSC in 2013 to provide this service to their clients. 

In 2013, a number of data dissemination agreements were signed 
with some data vendors. This is aimed at providing trading information 
to investors and stakeholders using all possible means. The ASE 
persisted in urging the listed companies to disclose their financial and 
material information in a timely manner. 

As usual, the ASE has been keen on further enhancing its relations with 
local, regional, and international institutions. In 2013, it was presented 
in several conferences and gatherings. It also received a number of 
delegates representing Arab and international financial institutions in 
addition to some official delegations and students delegates. 

The major events include participation in the meeting of Arab Exchanges 
group that operates the French trading system which was sponsored 
by New York Stock Exchange- Euronext. The ASE also participated in 
the annual meeting of the Arab Federation of Exchanges. Actually, the 
ASE is looking forward for further participation and representation at 
all local and international gathering to enhance its relationship with all 
local, regional, and international institutions. 

Arab, 
Regional, and 
International 
Cooperation

Technical
Level

Disclosure & 
Information 
Dissemination

Legislative
Level
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The ownership of the National Financial Center has been transferred 
to the Ministry of Finance upon a sale agreement co-signed by the 
Ministry of Finance and the JSC in 2013. 

The ASE Board of Directors discussed the issue of demutualization 
of the ASE into a public shareholding company totally owned by 
the government as a first step. This comes in line with the Arab 
and international experiences in this field. The Board opted for this 
directive and has already initiated correspondence with the competent 
governmental authorities on this issue. This will realize further benefits 
for both the ASE and the national economy in future. Changing the 
legal status will provide for more flexibility and help it diversify services 
and products as well as concluding agreements with the regional and 
international Exchanges. Thus, the ASE competence will increase and 
its liquidity and capacity to attract new investments will be enhanced. 
Conclusively, the ASE revenues will increase and will help provide 
finance required for developing and upgrading its technical and 
technological infrastructure. 

I would like to thank you all for your efforts to develop and modernize 
the Jordanian Capital Market which was achieved by virtue of efforts 
of all those working at these institutions and cooperation among all 
of those in the capital market especially the JSC. On this occasion, I 
also commend the sincere efforts exerted by all the staff of the ASE- 
management and personnel. Finally, thank you for accepting our 
invitation to attend this meeting. We wish continuous prosperity for 
our country under the leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah II Ibn 
Al Hussein. 
 

May Peace and Allah’s Mercy and Blessings be with you

Marwan Batayneh
Chairman of the Board 

legal Status
of ASE

The National 
Financial 
Center
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Economic Situation

The Jordanian economy achieved a positive growth during 2013. 
The preliminary indicators revealed a real growth of 2.8% in Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) at constant prices during the first three 
quarters of the year 2013.Thereby maintaining the same growth level 
achieved during the same period of 2012. This comes as a result of 
the political and economical conditions that the region is suffering from 
as an outcome of the political turmoil which still negatively affects the 
Jordanian economy.

Most of the economic activities marked varied real growth. The 
economic activity with the highest growth was construction sector 
with 8.4%, during the first three quarters of 2013 at constant prices 
compared with the same period of 2012, followed by transport and 
communications sector with 4.0%. Finance, Insurance & Real Estate 
sector with 3.8%, Trade, Restaurants and Hotels sector with 3.6%, 
Manufacturing sector with 1.7%, also Agriculture sector recorded a 
growth rate of 1.1%, while the Mining and Quarrying, Electricity, and 
Water sectors declined by 10.5% and 0.7%, respectively compared 
with the same period in 2012. However, the real GDP growth rate for 
the year 2012 stood at 2.7%. In the meantime, the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) increased by 5.6% during the year 2013, compared with 
an increase of 4.7% in 2012.

For the monetary policy, the Central Bank of Jordan (CBJ) decreased 
the re-discount rate from 5% by the end of 2012 to 4.5% by the end 
of 2013. Interest rates on Treasury Bills (12 months) decreased to 
4.3% at the end of 2013 compared with 6.8% at the end of 2012; and 
the weighted average interest rates on credit facilities extended in the 
form of loans and advances increased by the end of 2013 to 9.03% 
compared with 8.95% at the end of 2012. Local liquidity as measured 
by money supply (M2) grew at the end of 2013 by 9.7% compared 
with the end of 2012. On the other hand, foreign currency reserves 
at the CBJ reached JD8512 million at the end of 2013 compared with 
JD4,702.5  million in 2012; an increase of 81%.
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With regard to the performance of public finance, the figures showed 
an increase in total public revenues and foreign grants of 13.2% by 
the end of November 2013 compared with the same period of 2012. 
Total public spending by November 2013 marked an increase of 4.5% 
compared with the same period of 2012. Hence, fiscal deficit after 
grants amounted to JD1100.8 million for the period mentioned above 
compared with JD1427.2 million for the same period of 2012.

Foreign trade figures issued by the Department of Statistics (DOS) 
indicated an increase in the volume of foreign trade in 2013 compared 
with 2012. The Jordanian exports (national exports and re-exports) 
increased by 0.3% in 2013 compared with 2012. Imports increased 
by 5.4% in 2013 compared with 2012; as a result, the deficit in the 
Balance of Trade increased by 8.5% compared with the 2012 up to 
JD9906.9 million.

As for the outstanding public debt, the central government net 
domestic debt reached JD11862 million by the end of November 2013 
against JD11648 million by the end of 2012. The outstanding external 
public debt reached JD7202.8 million by the end of November 2013 
compared with JD4932.4 million by the end of 2012.
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Arab and International Stock Exchanges

Arab Stock Exchanges

The Performance of most Arab stock exchanges during 2013 was 
positive. The Arab Monetary Fund Composite Index for Arab stock 
exchanges denominated in USD increased by 18.6% during 2013. 
The S&P AFE 40 Index, which was created and launched by S&P 
Indices in cooperation with the Arab Federation of Exchanges (AFE) 
at the beginning of 2013, has increased by 18.7%. Available figures 
for local price indices of Arab stock exchanges denominated in local 
currencies showed that the price index of the Dubai Financial Market 
witnessed an increase by 107.7% as compared with 2012 closing; it 
was the best among the Arab markets. Abu Dubai Securities Exchange 
ranked the second with a 63.1% increase; followed by Kuwait Stock 
Exchange with an increase of 27.2%. Shares prices at the Saudi 
Stock Exchange increased by 25.5% putting it in the fourth rank. The 
price indices for Qatar Exchange, The Egyptian Exchange, Muscat 
Securities Market, Bahrain Bourse , Palestine Exchange and  Amman 
Stock Exchange increased by 24.2%, 24.2% , 18.6%, 17.2%, 13.4% 
and 5.5% respectively. However, the price indices of Casablanca 
Stock Exchange and Tunis Stock Exchange declined by 2.6% and 
4.3%, respectively compared with the end of 2012, figure No. (1)

Figure No. (1)
Arab Stock Exchanges Performance in 2013
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Figures issued by the Arab Monetary Fund revealed that the market 
capitalization of the Arab stock exchanges increased to USD1120.2 
billion or by 19.0% at the end of 2013 compared with USD941.4 billion 
by the end of 2012. The Saudi Stock Exchange came first in terms 
of the market capitalization compared with other Arab markets as its 
market capitalization amounted to USD459.5 billion or 41.0% of the 
total market capitalization of the Arab stock exchanges by the end of 
2013. Dubai and Abu Dubai Exchange ranked the second with 16.7% 
of total market capitalization of Arab stock exchanges with a market 
value of USD187.6 billion, figure No. (2). 

Figure No. (2)
Market Capitalization of the Arab Stock Exchanges, 2013

World and Emerging Markets

The price indices of most world stock exchanges increased in 2013. 
MSCI AC World Index (ACWI) calculated by Morgan Stanley to all 
stock exchanges worldwide (developed and emerging) increased by 
20.3% in 2013 as compared with 2012. The market capitalization of 
stock exchanges members in the World Federation of Exchanges 
(WFE) increased by more than USD9 trillion or by 17.8% compared 
with the end of 2012.
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Developed Markets

MSCI World Index for developed markets increased by 24.1% in 2013 
compared with 2012. United States stocks prices increased in 2013; 
NASDAQ Composite Index increased by 38.3%. The S&P500 index 
increased by 29.6% and the Dow Jones Industrial Average index 
increased by 26.5% compared with 2012. 

Most stock exchanges in Europe and Asia also witnessed an increase 
in their performance whereby the stock price index for Tokyo Stock 
Exchange increased by 56.7 % according to NIKKEI225 index, the 
Xetra DAX of Frankfurt Stock Exchange increased by 25.5%, the Paris 
Stock Exchange increased by 18.0% according to CAC40 index, the 
FTSE100 index of London Stock Exchange increased by 14.4% and 
the Hang Seng index for Hong Kong Stock Exchange increased by 
2.9%, figure No. (3).   

Figure No. (3)

Performance of Some World Stock Exchanges, 2013

Emerging Markets
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showed a decrease in the performance of most emerging markets 
during 2013. The Indices of Peru, Turkey, Chile , Brazil, Czech, South 
Africa, India, Philippines, Mexico, valued in USD, decreased in 2013 
by 31.1%, 28.1%, 23.1%, 18.7%, 14.9%, 8.9%, 5.3%, 4.3%, and 2.0% 
respectively compared with 2012. Whereas, the index of Greece, 
Taiwan, Malaysia, and China increased by 46.3, 6.6%, 4.2%, and 
4.0% respectively, figure no. (4). 

Figure No. (4)

Performance of Some Emerging Stock Exchanges, 2013
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First: Secondary Market

Value of trading at the secondary market including stock market, the 
right issues market, the bonds market and the transactions excluded 
from trading mounted to JD3138 million by the end of 2013 compared 
with JD2022 million for 2012 with an increase of 55.2 %. The value of 
stocks traded through the trading system made up 96.5% of the total 
trading value at the secondary market. 

The following outlines the secondary market activity during 2013:

A. Stock Market

The shares of 223 companies were traded in 2013, the prices of 122 
companies marked an increase, while 89 companies decreased and 
12 companies stabilized. For the trading value; it showed an increase 
of 53% compared with 2012, figure No. (5), the number of traded 
shares increased by 13.5% also the number of executed transactions 
increased by 10.2% compared with 2012.

Figure No. (5)

Trading Value at the ASE

Performance of Amman Stock Exchange in 2013
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Sectoral distribution of trading value showed that the Financial sector 
ranked the first followed by the Services sector, then the Industrial 
sector, figure No. (6). Trading values of Real Estate, Banks, Diversified 
Financial Services, Transportations and Mining and Extraction 
Industries sectors made up 29.8%, 28.6%, 14.5%, 6.0% and 3.1% 
respectively of the total trading value. 

Figure No. (6)

Trading Value at the ASE by Sector, 2013

Average daily trading value has increased during 2013 reaching 
JD12.4 million against JD7.9 million in 2012, an increase of 56.7%. 

In terms of turnover ratio, the Financial sector ranked first with 42.9% 
followed by the Industrial sector with 34.3%, and finally the Services 
sector with 26.9%. Overall, the turnover ratio at the ASE during 2013 
was 38%. 
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B.  Shares Price Indices: 

Stock Price  Index Weighted by Free Float Market Capitalization 

The price index, weighted by market capitalization of free float shares, 
increased by 5.5% in 2013 reaching 2066 points, figure No. (7). 
Whereas the price index, weighted by market capitalization, stood at 
4337 points; a decrease of 5.6%. 

Figure No. (7)

Price Index Weighted by Market Capitalization of Free Float Shares
 (Closing of 1999=1000)

At the sector level, the Financial sector index increased by 14.4% 
compared with 2012 due to the increase of all sub-sector indices 
except the Insurance sector which decreased by 5.0%; while the Real 
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22.1%, 17.6%, 14.1% respectively.

It is worth mentioning that the Banks sector index affects the overall 
Financial sector index by 77.7%.  

The Services sector index increased by 0.83% due to the increase 
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Services sectors affect the Services sector index by more than 50.0%. 
While the Media sector, Technology and Communication sector, and 
the Hotel and Tourism sector indices decreased by 29.1%, 22.6% and 
5.9% respectively. 

Finally the Industrial sector fell down by 9.7% due to the decrease 
in the Paper and Cardboard Industries sector, Mining and Extraction 
Industries sector indices by 46.0% and 33.7% respectively. Tobacco 
and Cigarettes sector, Electrical Industries sector, Chemical Industries 
sector, Pharmaceutical and Medical Industries, Glass and Ceramic 
Industries sector, Engineering and Construction sector, Printing and 
Packaging sector, Food and Beverages sector and Textiles, Leather 
and Clothing sector indices increased by 79.4%, 42.9%, 22.7%, 
21.9%, 14.2%, 11.5%, 10.5%, 3.6%, 1.7% respectively, where the 
Mining and Extraction Industries sector affects the Industrial sector 
index with more than 50.0%, figure No. (8).
 

Figure No. (8)

Performance of Sub Sector Indices in 2013
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Price Index Weighed by Free Float Market capitalization 
according to Market: 

In 2012, the Directives for Listing Securities for the year 2012 were 
put into practice. These directives were issued in compliance with 
the provisions of Article (72) of the Securities law No. (76) for 2002. 
Upon these directives, the companies listed at the ASE are distributed 
at three markets based on several standards; mainly the strength or 
weakness of the financial position of the company, and the high or low 
level of liquidity. The investors can now base their investment decision 
on the levels of return and the risk they wish to tolerate. 

New indices have been created to benchmark the three markets’ 
performance. The closing of the year 2012 was adopted as a base 
year with 1000 points. A ceiling was also identified for the impact of any 
company on the movements of the index so that it would not exceed 
10%. In addition, the market capitalization principles and the company 
activity have been adopted for sampling purposes. 

For the indices of markets and their performance in 2013, the index of 
the First Market reached 1052 points by the end of 2013 marking an 
increase of 5.2% against the past year; for the Second Market 1104 
points with an increase of 10.4%; and 1100 points for the Third Market 
with an increase of 10.0%, Figure No. (9). 

Figure No. (9)

Stock price index weighted by free float market capitalization by market
(Closing of 2012 = 1000)
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As a result of the decline in shares prices, the market capitalization of 
listed companies decreased by 4.7% at the end of 2013 representing 
83.0% of the GDP, figure No. (10).

Table No. (1)

Market Capitalization of Listed Companies By Sector
(JD Million)

TotalIndustryServicesFinancialYear

2252760913877125592009

2185863813735117422010

192735944348198472011

191426159339895842012

1823343953276105622013

Figure No. (10)
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C. Bonds Market

Value of bonds traded during the year 2013 amounted to JD2 million 
where 2058 bonds of Arab International hotels Company were traded 
during the year 2013.

It is worth mentioning that the bonds market hasn’t seen any action 
during the year 2012.

D. Right Issues Market

No trading took place at the right issues market during 2013, while the 
trading value during 2012 amounted to JD 63.9 thousands.

E. Transactions Excluded from Trading 

Data issued by the Securities Depository Center (SDC) showed that 
the value of transactions excluded from trading system increased in 
2013. These transactions included inheritance and family transfers 
and other transactions. Transactions excluded from trading amounted 
to JD108.9 million in 2013 compared with JD43.3 million in 2012, and 
the number of shares transferred during 2013 amounted to 68  million 
shares compared with 25.7 million shares in 2012. 

The value of bonds transferred during the year 2013 was JD0.3 million, 
with 50 bonds transferred, while no bonds transferred during the year 
2012.  

Second: Non-Jordanian Investment

The total value of shares purchased by non-Jordanian investors in 
2013 amounted to JD939.5 million representing 31.0% of the total 
trading value, meanwhile, the value of shares sold by them amounted 
to JD792.6 million, which resulted in an increase of non-Jordanian net 
investment by JD146.9 million during 2013, compared with an increase 
of JD37.7 million in 2012.

By the end of 2013, non-Jordanian ownership in listed companies 
formed 49.9% of the total market capitalization of the ASE, Figure No. 
(11). 
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The Lebanese investments at the ASE ranked the first among non-
Jordanian investments with a value of JD1.2 billion, constituting 6.5% 
of the market capitalization of the ASE according to the SDC figures. 
Kuwait investments ranked the second with a percentage of 6.0%, 
followed by the Qatar investments which formed 5.1%, then the Saudi 
investments which represented 4.9%, then American investments 
which represented 4.5%. 

Figure No. (11)
Non-Jordanian Ownership in Listed Companies

Third: Listing at the ASE:

The number of listed companies at the ASE at the end of 2013 was 240 
compared with 243 companies at the end of 2012.  Companies listed 
at the First Market counted for 62 companies,139 companies listed 
at the Second Market, and 39 companies listed at the Third Market. 
Capitals of listed companies at the ASE increased to 7.2 billion JD/
shares at the end of 2013 in comparison with 7.1 billion JD/shares at 
the end of 2012, however, the ASE delisted five companies during the 
year 2013 by virtue of the Listing Securities Directives.
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A. The new securities listed at the ASE during the year 2013:

1- Shares:

The ASE listed two new companies with a capital of 50.8 million JD/
shares, the following table shows the names and capitals of these 
companies:

CapitalListing dateSymbolCompanyNo.

770,00010/04/2013SHBASHEBA METAL CASTING1

50,000,00025/11/2013UGHIUNITED GROUP HOLDINGS2

2- Right Issues:

The ASE listed 2 right issues with a total number of 7.0 million rights, 
the following table shows the right issues that were listed during the 
year 2013: 

No. of RightsSymbolRight NameNo.

1,000,000R0082NOTI RIGHT ISSUES 011

6,000,000R0083NDAR RIGHT ISSUES 012

3- Bonds and Treasury Bills:

The ASE listed 75 issues of Government Treasury bonds during the 
year 2013 with a value of JD4500 million, it also listed 12 issues of 
Treasury Bills with a value of JD720 million, and five issues of Water 
Authority bonds during the year 2013 with a value of JD97.0 million. 

B- The companies which raised their capitals during 2013:

Six companies increased their capitals through private subscription; the 
total number of shares which were increased was 33,187,583 shares. 
Six listed companies raised their capitals through strategic partners 
with a total number of 20,707,367 shares.  Finally; 12 companies raised 
their capitals through stock dividends totaling 65,950,750 shares.
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C- Companies de-listed during the year 2013

The ASE has de-listed shares of five companies in the year of 2013 
in accordance with the ASE Listing Securities Directives; those 
companies were: General Lightweight Concrete Industries, Gerasa 
Insurance, United Group Holdings, Union Advanced Industries, and 
Babelon Investments. On the other hand, the shares of United Group 
Holdings Company has been re-listed upon its request.
 
Fourth: Primary Market

The total value of newly issued shares and bonds counted for JD5800.9 
million in 2013; with a decrease of 7.0% compared with 2012. The 
issues of Government Treasury Bills and Bonds were JD4680 million 
in 2013; Treasury Bills counted for JD575 million, while the value of 
Treasury bonds issues in 2013 was JD4105 million. In 2013, the Water 
Authority issued bonds with a value of JD180 million, Corporate Bonds 
issued during 2013 amounted to JD81.5 million, also, the government 
issued treasury bonds by Dollar totaling JD813.4 million. As for the 
primary issues of shares; 15 existing companies raised their capitals 
for an amount of 51.9 million shares with value of JD46 million. 
 
Fifth: Membership of the Amman Stock Exchange

In 2013, the membership of Jordan River Financial Investments was 
cancelled.  Thus, the number of the ASE members was 62 by the end 
of 2013, while the operating brokerage firms were 61. 

Sixth: Dispute resolution

The ASE received applications for dispute resolution between the 
members and their clients according to the Dispute Resolution 
Directives of the ASE for 2004. These counted for 4 applications 
in 2013. The advantage of Dispute Resolution at ASE according to 
the relevant directives is the prompt resolution of the issues set for 
arbitration.
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First: Legislative Updates

In 2013, the ASE amended its Trading Directives aiming at 
developing trading rules and procedures applied on the ASE.  
These amendments are as follows: 

1.	 Article (24) was amended to provide for operating the trading 
system on the last business day of the calendar year, on the 
opposite of the previous text stating at stopping the trading 
system on that day. Accordingly, as of 2013 the ASE has been 
operating the trading system and holding the trading session 
on the last business day of the calendar year.

2.	 Upon request by the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC), 
Article (21.A) was amended to provide for having the broker 
and related people trade through other brokers in certain 
cases as approved by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
In coordination with the JSC, the ASE has set the legislative and 
technical environment for listing and trading with the Islamic Sukuk 
as the Law of Islamic Sukuk for 2012 has been already enacted. 
The relevant regulations will be approved in 2014.  

The ASE has approved and implemented its Personnel Bylaw for 
2013. Upon this Bylaw, the following regulations have been issued: 
the Medical Treatment Regulations; Recruitment, Selection, and 
Appointment Regulations; Regulations of Rewards and Incentives 
of the ASE Personnel for 2013; Regulations of Business Hours, 
Leaves, and Part Time Work; Instructions of Official Telephone 
Calls’ Compensation for the ASE Personnel for 2013. 

ASE Achievements in 2013
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Second: Technical Developments

1.	 The Launch of ASELIVE Software to monitor trading 
through cellular phones. 

Furthering the services delivered to its investors, the ASE 
launched the (ASELIVE) software using the smart phones with 
Android operating system which was internally developed in 
order to  enable the investors and other interested stakeholders 
to monitor their investments any time anywhere using their smart 
phones with a live user-friendly facility. 

This software contributes to the implementation of the objectives 
and strategy of the E-government aiming at improving the level 
of service delivery; providing better service quality for individuals 
and business sectors; providing highly accurate information in a 
timely manner; and increasing the returns on investment. 

The Software provides live information display for 15 companies 
at the same time where the user selects the companies he/she 
wishes to follow. The Software also enables the user to monitor 
12 different lists of companies; that means 180 companies are 
available on the overall lists. The Software provides, as well, a 
general summary report on the market performance in terms of 
the trading volume, number of traded shares, the market index 
value, the market depth by means of a screen showing the best 
five prices for the bid and ask orders for each stock, and a graph 
showing the intraday share price behavior. In addition, the software 
provides a ticker tape to display the circulars and disclosures of 
the ASE and its members; another ticker tape to display the prices 
of shares on the ASE. This Software is registered in Google Play to 
enable users to download it for free. It is worth mentioning that the 
ASE has, relying on this Software, applied to the competition on 
the best governmental service delivered via the mobile telephone 
in the Arab world which will be held in Dubai.  

2.	 Producing a new ticker tape for Jordan TV:

The ASE has developed a new version of the stock prices ticker 
tape on Jordan TV. This new ticker is more visible, easier to read, 
and takes a less space on the screen which harmonizes in terms 
of size and colors with the new news ticker of Jordan TV. 
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3.	 The Project of Upgrading the Communication Network 
for the Capital Market institutions:

A tender was announced to upgrade the communication network 
for the Capital Market Institutions. This project will be implemented 
early 2014. This network interconnects these institutions, the 
financial brokerage firms and the public shareholding companies 
all together. 

4.	 The Project of Replacing the Web Load Balancer:

The tender for replacing the web load balancer was announced. 
This load balancer enables the ASE dealers and interested parties 
to have access to the online services provided by the ASE in an 
optimal method and as promptly as possible. It is worth mentioning 
that all the online services delivered by the ASE serve more than 3 
million requests per hour during the trading session. 

Third: The Project of Upgrading the Electronic Trading 
System

The ASE participates in a joint venture project with three Arab 
Exchanges; namely, Muscat Securities Market, Bourse de Tunis, 
and Beirut Stock Exchange to upgrade the current electronic 
trading system to a new version by the NYSE Euronext. It is 
worth mentioning that the NYSE Euronext is the developer of the 
current trading system. The new version called (Hybrid) fulfills the 
emerging market requirements as it can handle financial securities 
such as stocks and bonds in addition to other financial instruments 
such as derivatives and forward contracts. The system is provided 
with a mechanism to control the trading and monitoring process. 
It can be technically developed in terms of performance, capacity, 
and trading screen. The ASE can have access to the system 
progressively and consider the available options according to 
the needs of the Jordanian Capital Market. In fact, the ASE has 
signed a letter of intention with the developer as a first step to sign 
the final contracts and start the development of this new version. 
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Fourth: The Jordanian National Financial Center Project

The ownership of the Center has been transferred to the Ministry 
of Finance upon a sale agreement signed by the JSC and the 
Ministry of Finance. It is based on a decision by the Cabinet and 
the Board of Commissioners of the JSC to the effect of transferring 
the ownership of the Center that belongs to the JSC.

Fifth: Completion of All Phases of the IT Audit Project: 

All phases of the IT Audit Project for the brokerage firms have 
been completed in cooperation with Price Water House Coopers. 
The accounting systems implemented by the brokerage firms 
have been amended to comply with the pertinent international 
standards. In addition, the infrastructure of networks and 
protection have been developed to, largely, mitigate the risks that 
those companies might encounter. The accounting systems of five 
provider companies have been audited in addition to accounting 
systems of other 20 brokerage firms in cooperation with Price 
Water House Coopers. 

Sixth: Disclosure and Information Dissemination

The ASE signed three agreements in 2013 to disseminate 
information through market watch screens; thus, agreements in this 
respect total (37) now. The ASE also signed other 4 agreements to 
disseminate information through the ticker tape of stocks prices; 
thus, agreements in this respect total (103) now. In addition, the 
ASE signed one agreement to disseminate information through 
(GL) screens; thus, agreements in this respect total (7) now. The 
ASE also signed one agreement to disseminate information by 
cell phones; thus, agreements in this respect total (5) now.

Seventh: Awareness and Media

The ASE held an awareness lecture entitled “Corporate 
Governance and new markets segmentations at the ASE”. This 
lecture is a part of the ASE’ marketing and awareness strategy, 
and in line with the ASE policy to raise public awareness. This 
lecture is part of training courses series which is held to enhance 
its role with the local community. 
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Eighth: Local, Arab and International Presence

 On the local Level:

Under the patronage of the ASE, Chartered Financial Analysis 
Institute (CFA), and CFA Jordan launched the Challenge Initiative 
for Research Challenge in Jordan. Teams from five local leading 
Jordanian universities competed with a chance to participate at 
the regional and global levels.
This challenge is an initiative to teach university students in 
Jordan best practices in equity research, valuation, and ethics and 
as means for leading industry professionals to train students in 
researching and reporting on public shareholding companies.
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Delegations Received

The ASE received several official and students’ delegations at its 
premises from local, Arab and international agencies including the 
following: 

•	 A delegation from the Inspection & Surveillance Department 
- Khartoum Stock Exchange (KSE), where  briefed on the 
experience of  the ASE in the fields related to inspection, 
monitoring, and  surveillance,  and  the latest  technical and 
legislative developments witnessed by the Jordan capital 
market. This visit comes within the framework of cooperation 
and exchanging experiences between the two exchanges.

•	 An American students’ delegation from Law Faculty / Aiwa 
University at USA. This visit comes within a framework of a 
field visit to Jordan where the ASE briefed the delegation about 
the operations at the ASE and the investment principles. They 
also had an overview on the latest legislative and technical 
developments of Jordan capital market and the trading system 
of the ASE.
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•	 A delegation from Libyan stock market, where the delegation 
was briefed on the mechanism of work of the Information and 
telecommunication Department, The delegation also visited 
the JSC and Securities Depository Center (SDC). This visit 
comes within the framework of mutual cooperation, which 
aims to exchange the experiences between the ASE and the 
Libyan stock market.

•	 The United States of America (USA) Ambassador who was 
accompanied by a number of senior economic assistants and 
the Manager of the United States Agency for International 
Development (USAID), the aim of the visit is to enhance 
communications and cooperation between the American 
party and the Jordan capital market institutions; as well as to 
observe the developments and achievements of the Capital 
Market Institutions in various areas.

•	 A delegation from Muscat Securities Market, where briefed 
on the ASE experience on inspection, surveillance and listing 
as well as the latest legislative and technical developments 
witnessed by the Jordan capital market.

•	 Students’ delegations from the University of Jordan/ Aqaba 
Branch, Al-Albayt University and Al-Fareed Model Schools. 
The delegations received a briefing about the ASE operations 
and its investment principles. Also, they were briefed on the 
latest legislative and technical developments witnessed by the 
Jordan capital market.
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On the Arab Level, the ASE participated in:

•	 The Annual conference of the Arab Federation of Exchanges 
(AFE) which was organized by Muscat Securities Market, and 
was held in Muscat / Sultanate of Oman. Many exchanges, 
securities commissions, clearing houses, brokerage firms, 
investments banks and high profile experts attended 
the meeting. During the meeting, a number of important 
issues were discussed regarding the Union and some Arab 
exchanges which have applied the trading system NSC. This 
issue regarding the trading system came to complement the 
discussions of the meeting which was held in Paris to take 
the necessary decisions regarding a NYSE Euronext proposal 
to provide regional stock exchanges which used the above 
mentioned trading system with a new version of the system. 
In addition to the discussion of a framework to connect 
stock exchanges in Gulf region and invite all the exchanges 
members in the federation to discuss the possibility of circulate 
an interconnection project to all Arab stock exchanges in a 
second phase.

•	 The Thirty-Eighth General Assembly Meeting (GA) of the AFE , 
which was held in Tunis. During the meeting, the GA approved 
the minutes of the previous meeting which was held in Muscat 
- Sultanate of Oman in 2012, and they listened to the report 
of the Chairman of the Executive Committee (EC). They also 
approved the recommendation of the EC of the federation 
regarding financial statements for the fiscal year 2012 and the 
discharge of the General Secretariat for the fiscal year 2012. 
In addition to confirm the recommendation of the EC regarding 
the estimated budget and the appointment of the auditor of the 
Federation for the year 2013. They also approved the transfer 
of the presidency of the Federation for the next meeting to 
the host country Tunisia, represented by Mr. Mohamed Bisho, 
Chairman of Bourse de Tunis. These meetings witnessed a 
wide participation from the stock exchanges, the Securities 
commissions, depository centers and brokerage firms. On the 
margin of this meeting, the ASE participated as a member 
of the EC of the AFE, in the third meeting held by the EC in 
the presence of all committee members. During the meeting 
they approved the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
EC. Also, they presented the results of Arab Stock Exchange 
Linkage meeting, which was held in Dubai in 2013, and the 
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initial contacts conducted by the General Secretary of the 
Federation regarding the development of its website and the 
addition of an electronic portal to collect statistical information 
and building a database specialized to the Federation. They 
also oversaw the financial position of the Federation for the 
first quarter of 2013 and discussed the preparations for the 
annual conference of the Federation for 2014 to be held in 
Morocco. 

•	 In the training program on inspection systems on entities 
subject to the JSC supervision. Monitoring and management 
methods, investigation and implementation of these systems 
have discussed. This program was held in cooperation with the 
Union of Arab Securities Authorities and with a participation 
of a number of Arab countries, including Iraq, Kuwait, United 
Arab Emirates, Palestine, Oman, Saudi Arabia and capital 
market institutions in Jordan.

On the International Level:

•	 Under the patronage of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) 
Euronext, the ASE participated in the meeting of Arab Stock 
Exchanges using the electronic trading system (NSC), which 
was held in Paris. During the meeting, they reviewed the 
international developments at the level of trading systems and 
the needs of Arab stock exchanges for a new trading system 
during the next two years, whereas the company presented a 
conception of a new system that will be specially developed for 
emerging markets recognized as “Hybrid System”. The new 
system will be able to deal with securities as stocks and bonds 
as well as other financial instruments such as derivatives and 
forward contracts. Moreover, the system has a mechanism to 
monitor the trading operations and surveillance in addition to 
the possibility of the development of the system technically 
in terms of performance, capacity and market watch screens. 
The ASE will conduct review of the new system upon its update 
and examine the available options in accordance with Jordan 
Capital Market needs.
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•	 The ASE participated in the 7th meeting of the Organization of 
the Islamic Cooperation (OIC) which has been held in Istanbul/ 
Turkey. The meeting was attended by representatives of the 
stock exchanges and clearing and settlement institutions 
of OIC member states. The Forum meetings bring together 
integration and harmonization between securities markets, 
accelerating regulatory convergence, prospects of mutual 
investments developing debt and capital markets instruments 
and sukuk. 

•	 The ASE participated in a seminar entitled “Islamic 
Collateralized Liquidity Management Tool and Islamic 
Real Estate Investment Trusts” which was organized by 
the International Islamic Financial Market (IIFM). It is worth 
mentioning that the IIFM is an international Islamic Financial 
Services Industry’s standard setting organization. Its primary 
focus lies in the standardization of Islamic financial products, 
documentation and related processes at the global level.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S  REPORT

01 14 504

To the Members of
Amman Stock Exchange 
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of the 
Amman Stock Exchange ( ASE) which comprise the Financial Position 
as at December 31st ,2013 and the Statement of Revenues and 
Expenses, Statement of Changes in General Reserve  and Statement 
of Cash Flow for the year then ended. And a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards,  and for determining the required internal control 
system which is necessary to prepare the financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance  whether the Financial Statements are 
free from material misstatement.
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit  evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessing the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error;  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
ASE internal control system.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a  basis for our audit opinion.

Basis of Qualified  Opinion
The ASE has recorded property and equipment items amounting 
330,000 JD according to the accompanying financial statements due 
to the fact of the ASE proceding the procedures of purchasing this 
property in 2013 which will be implemented during 2014.

Qualified  Opinion
In our opinion, except for the material effect of the above mentioned 
issue, the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects 
the Financial Position of the ASE as of December 31st ,2013 and of 
its financial performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards . 

Emphasis of a Mattar
As disclosed in note (8) to the financial statemens, the fixed assets 
consist of land and buildings with a book value JD 2,610,962 as of 
December 31st ,2013 were not registered under the name of the ASE.
As disclosed in note (20) to the financial statements, the ASE is a 
defendant in law suit alleging the failure to apply the procedures for 
transferring shares. These actions are still in progress. The ultimate 
outcome of the litigation can not presently be determined . Accordingly, 
no provision for any liability that may result upon adjudication has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements . 
The ASE maintains proper accounting records.
Based on the above we recommend the General Assembly to approve 
the accompanying Financial Statements .

FOR IBRAHIM ABBASI & CO.

Dr. Ibrahim M. Abbasi
License No. 116 								      

Amman – February 3 , 2014
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AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
Financial Position Sheet as of December 31st, 2013

Statement A

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Financial Position Sheet as of December 31st , 2013 Statement A

Note 2013 2012
Assets JD JD
Current Assets
Cash on hand & at banks 3 1,841,102 981,818
Accounts receivable - Net 4 362,077 190,450
Advance For Jordan National Financial Center 5 5,264,817 25,000,000
Loan for Jordan Securities Commission 6 - 1,654,100
Receivables Securities Depository Center 4,060 9,077
Other receivables 7 248,358 153,714
Total Current Assets 7,720,414 27,989,159

NonCurrent Assets
Property and equipment - Net 8 3,231,084 3,056,690
Total NonCurrent Assets 3,231,084 3,056,690
Total Assets 10,951,498 31,045,849

Liabilities and General Reserve
Current  Liabilities
Credit Banks 46,097 28,188
Other payables 9 623,038 213,591
Total  Current liabilities 669,135 241,779

Remuneration Provision 10 673,633 673,633

General Reserve
Reserve Jordan National Financial Center 11 - 26,000,000

Reserve Property and equipment 12 3,056,690 3,056,690

General reserve 13 1,300,000 1,000,000

14 4,000,000 -

Net accumulated surplus (Exhibit C) 1,252,040 73,747

Total of  Reserves 9,608,730 30,130,437
Total Liabilities and General Reserve 10,951,498 31,045,849

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

2

Provision for updating and Development 
for the Electronic  Stock System
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AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
Statement of Revenues & Expenses for the Year

Ended December 31st, 2013

Statement B

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
Statement of Revenues & Expenses for the Year

Ended December 31st , 2013 Statement B

Note 2013 2012
JD JD

Revenue
Revenue 15 3,748,947 2,713,220
Other revenues 16 5,198,804 885,250
Total Revenue 8,947,751 3,598,470
Expenses
General & administrative expenses 17 (2,345,870) (2,118,817)
Depreciation and amortizations (203,403) (789,714)
Remuneration Provision 18 (208,000) (40,225)
Doubtful debts (90,000) (80,636)
Total Expenses (2,847,273) (3,029,392)
Year net surplus (Statement  C) 6,100,478 569,078

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

3
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AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Statement of changes in the General Reserve for the Year 
Ended 31st December , 2012

Statement C

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Statement of changes in the General Reserve for the Year Ended
 December 31st , 2013

Statement C

Description
Reserve of 

Jordan National 
Financial Center

Reserve of 
property and 

equipment

General 
reserve 

Provision for 
updating and 

Development for 
the Stock System 

Accumulated
Surplus

Total

JD JD JD JD JD JD

Balance as of December 31st ,2012 ( statement  A) 26,000,000 3,056,690 1,000,000    - 73,747 30,130,437

Year net surplus (statement B)    -    -    -    - 6,100,478 6,100,478

Transferred the provision for the financial center building 
project to the accumulated surplus (Note 11)

(26,000,000)    -    -    - 26,000,000    -

Transferred to the Ministry of Finance - surpluses in kind    -    -    - (21,053,107) (21,053,107)

Transferred to the Ministry of Finance    -    -    - (5,569,078) (5,569,078)

Provision for updating and Development for the 
Eloctronic Stock System (Note 14)

   -    -    - 4,000,000 (4,000,000)    -

General reserve - Note (13)    -    - 300,000    - (300,000)    -

Balance as of December 31st ,2013 ( statement  A) 0 3,056,690 1,300,000 4,000,000 1,252,040 9,608,730

Balance as of December 31st ,2011 26,000,000    -    -    - 3,561,359 29,561,359

Year net surplus (Statement  B)    -    -    -    - 569,078 569,078

Reserve Property and equipment    - 3,056,690    - (3,056,690)    -

General reserve    -    - 1,000,000    - (1,000,000)    -

Balance as of December 31st ,2012 ( statement  A) 26,000,000 3,056,690 1,000,000    - 73,747 30,130,437

4
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AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year 

Ended December 31st , 2012

Statement D

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year

Ended December 31st , 2013 Statement D

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities JD JD

Net surplus 6,100,478 569,078
Doubtful debts 90,000 80,636
Depreciation and amortizations 203,403 789,714
Year Net Surplus before Change in Working Capital 6,393,881 1,439,428
(Increase) Decrease in current assets
Accounts receivable (261,627) (79,908)
Advance  Jordan National Financial Center 19,735,183 1,000,000
Loan For Jordan Securities Commission 1,654,100 53,033
Other recievables (94,644) 26,386
Receivables Securities Depository Center 5,017 (9,077)
Increase (Decrease)  in current  liabilities 
Other  payables 409,447 (59,433)
Deferred Revenues - (453,221)
Remuneration provision - (1,560,410)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 27,841,357 356,798

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Changes in Fixed Assets (377,797) (309,739)
Net cash (Used in)  investing activities (377,797) (309,739)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Credit Banks 17,909 19,887

(21,053,107)    -
Transferred to the Ministry of Finance (5,569,078)    -
Net cash ( Used in)  provided by  Financing activities (26,604,276) 19,887
Net increase in cash balance 859,284 66,946
Cash and banks at the beginning of the Year 981,818 914,872
Cash and banks at the end of the Year (Statement  A) 1,841,102 981,818

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement

5

Transferred to the Ministry of Finance - surpluses 
in kind

The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of This Statement
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1- The ASE’s Establishment and its Activities
The Amman Stock Exchange (ASE) was established according to 
the Temporary Securities Law No. (23) For the year 1997. The ASE 
started its activities in March 1999 as a non-profit, private institution 
with administrative and financial autonomy. The ASE is authorized 
to function as an exchange for the trading of securities and it is 
governed by a seven-member board of directors. As a result of 
having a separate legal entity, The ASE may acquire and dispose 
properties (movable and immovable), carry out all legal acts, engage 
into contracts, have the right to sue and be sued, and authorize any 
attorney to act on its behalf in legal issues in order to achieve its 
objectives

2-Significant Accounting Policies

a- Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). They have been 
prepared under the historical cost convention except that financial 
assets and liabilities are carried at fair value. The Jordanian Dinar 
is the main currency of the ASE. So, it is used for the Presentation 
of the financial statements.

b- Estimations
The preparation of the financial statements requires  management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of financial assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent 
liabilities.  These estimates and assumptions also affect revenues 
and expenses and the resultant provisions and in particular, 
considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation 
of the amount and timing of future cash flows . Such estimates are 
necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving 
varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may 
differ resulting in future changes in such provisions. 
Management believes that the estimates are reasonable and are 
as follows:
-  Impairment on the debtors is configured depending bases and 

assumptions that are supported by the (ASE) management to 
estimate the reserves to be configured in accordance with the 
requirements of international standards for financial reporting.

-   Management reviews periodically the tangible assets in order to 
assess the amortization and depreciation for the year based on 

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 
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the useful life and future economic benefits. Any impairment is 
taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

-	 Provision is made to meet cases filed against the (ASE), 
depending on the legal study prepared by the (ASE) lawyer, and 
under which the risks are identified that may occur in the future 
and  re-examined in these studies periodically.

C- Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, and Cash at 
Banks which consists of Demand Deposits and Time Deposits with 
short-term maturities of three months or less.  

d- Accounts Receivables
Accounts receivable are stated at their net realizable value net of a 
provision for doubtful accounts , bad debts where written off when 
identified deduct of its stated provision and the collected amounts 
from debts which identified to revenues .

e- Offsetting
Offsetting occurs between financial assets and financial liabilities 
, and  the net amount in the financial statements occurs when the 
obligatory legal rights are available , and when they are settled on 
the basis of the offsetting , or upon the accrual of the assets and 
liabilities at the same time .

f- Provisions
The provisions  declared when the company has an obligation 
(legal or constructive) arising from past event, and the payment of 
the obligations are both probable and able to be reliable measured. 

g- Accounts payable & accrued amounts
The accounts payable & accrued amounts are recorded when 
received goods & services by the company , regardless of requesting 
from payables or not . 

h- Property and Equipments 
-	 The Property and Equipments are stated at cost net of accumulated 

depreciations , cost incluiding import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
assets to its working condition and location for its intended use 

-	 After initial recognition, the property and equipment recording in 
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 
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AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 

i- Other assets 

j- Provision of Remuneration

k- Revenue
-

- Listing fees revenues are accrued yearly .
- Other Revenues realized according to the accrual basis.

3- Cash on Hand and at Banks

This item consists of : 2013 2012
JD JD

Cash on Hand 5,000 1,236
Petty Cash 600 950
Fixed Deposits at Banks 1,835,502 979,632
Total 1,841,102 981,818

8

The trading Commissions are accrued daily after closing the trading process. 

Other assets are recorded at cost and Amortized over 4 years  using the straight line method at 
annual  rates of 25% .

Provision of remuneration is calculated in accordance with the internal By-law of the Amman 
Stock Exchange (ASE) .

accumulated impairment in value, while the land is not consumed
-	 Depreciation is recognized as an expense in each period, and 

depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates ranging 
between 2.5 and 25%

-	 The estimated useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year, 
and any change in the estimates is its effect on the subsequent 
periods

-	 The amount of the property and equipment that appear  at 
the financial positions is subject to impairment test when the 
emergence of any events or changes in circumstances shows 
that this value is non-refundable.

-	 In case of any indication of impairment, impairment losses are 
calculated depending on the value of assets policy

-    At any subsequent exclusion of property and equipment, it  will be 
recognized by the value of the gains and the resulting loss, which 
represents the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the value that appears out of the property and equipment in the 
statement of financial position within the profit or loss.

i- Other assets 
Other assets are recorded at cost and amortized over 4 years  using 
the straight line method at annual  rates of 25% .

j- Provision of Remuneration
Provision of remuneration is calculated in accordance with the 
internal By-law of the Amman Stock Exchange (ASE) .

k- Revenue
-  The trading Commissions are accrued daily after closing the 

trading process. 
-  Listing fees revenues are accrued yearly .
-  Other Revenues realized according to the accrual basis.

3- Cash on Hand and at Banks
	
This  item consists of:							     
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4- Accounts Receivable		

This  item consists of:								      
			 
a-

b- The Transactions at the Doubtful debts provision as follows:  	
	

5-  Advance For Jordan National Financial  Building 

-	 Pursuant to the Cabinet of ministers resolution taken in their 
meeting which was held on the 3rd of November, 2012 , it was 
agreed to transfer the ownership title of the building  belonging 
to the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC) to the benefit of 
Ministry of Finance. The building is cited on the piece of land No-
208 in the basin 8 in Amman lands with an area of 15285 square 
meters. Its ownership title will be transferred from the name of 
the JSC to the treasury of the Hashemite kingdom of Jordan to 
be used of the Ministry of Finance under a formal contract of sale 
for a symbolic price.

 -	 by a decision of the JSC board of commissioners, the JSC board 
of commissioners in their meeting held in the 14th of October, 
2012, decided to proceed in implementing the Cabinet’s above 
mentioned resolution, including addressing the ASE and the 
Securities Depository Center to issue the appropriate decision 
regarding their contribution in the building since they are under 
the Financial Surpluses Law.

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 
AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
Notes to Financial Statements 

4- Accounts Receivables

This  item consists of  :
2013 2012

a- JD JD
Companies receivables / Listing Commission 312,750 220,059
Brokers receivables 63,985 48,391

289,000 172,000

Account Receivables / Brokerage Commissions 36,342    -
Total 702,077 440,450
Doubtful debts provision (340,000) (250,000)
Net 362,077 190,450

b- The Transactions at the Doubtful debts provision as follows :  

2013 2012
JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 250,000 169,364
Additions 90,000 80,636
Balance at the End of the year 340,000 250,000

9

Other receivables / Fines for late 
quarterly financial statements
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4- Accounts Receivables

This  item consists of  :
2013 2012

a- JD JD
Companies receivables / Listing Commission 312,750 220,059
Brokers receivables 63,985 48,391

289,000 172,000

Account Receivables / Brokerage Commissions 36,342    -
Total 702,077 440,450
Doubtful debts provision (340,000) (250,000)
Net 362,077 190,450

b- The Transactions at the Doubtful debts provision as follows :  

2013 2012
JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 250,000 169,364
Additions 90,000 80,636
Balance at the End of the year 340,000 250,000

9

Other receivables / Fines for late 
quarterly financial statements
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 -	 on the 7th of March 2013, a commitment agreement between the 
Ministry of Finance/the Treasury of the Hashemite Kingdom of 
Jordan and the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC) has been 
signed to transfer the ownership of the building (Jordan National 
Financial Building). Procedures to transfer the ownership into the 
Ministry of Finance’s have been completed at the Department of 
Lands and Survey.

The following is the movement in the “Advance of Project” account 
during the year:	

According to the contract signed between the Ministry of Finance 
and  the JSC, the total cost of the “Jordan National Financial Center” 
project amounts to JOD32,389,394 as of 31 March 2013. The 
ASE’s share of the cost equals to 65% of the total cost equivalent 
to JOD21,053,107 while the Security Depository Center’s share 
is 35% of the total cost equivalent to JOD11,336,287. 			 
		

6-  Loan for Jordan Securities Commission				  
							     

The JSC was granted an  advance of JD 1,654,100 for the purpose 
of purchasing the piece of land number (196) and basin number (8) 
of Amman City lands, in order to build the Jordan National Financial 
Center. The settlement of this amount will take place after the 
transfer of the land’s title to the ASE and the SDC .				 
								      

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
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Notes to Financial Statements 

5- Advance For Jordan National Financial  Building 

-

-

-

Following is the movement in the "Advance of Project" account during the year:
2013 2012
JD JD

- Balance at the bigning of the year 25,000,000 26,000,000
Add:

-
4,671,797    -

- Close of the balance due from the (JSC) - (note 6) 1,654,100    -
- Recors interest accrued on the (JSC) due balance  33,372    -

Less:
- (21,053,107)    -

- (5,007,826) (1,000,000)
-

(22,097)    -

- Other (11,422)    -
Balance at the end of the year 5,264,817 25,000,000

10

on the 7th of March 2013, a commitment agreement between the Ministry of Finance/the 
Treasury of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan and the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC) has 
been signed to transfer the ownership of the building (Jordan National Financial Building).
Procedures to transfer the ownership into the Ministry of Finance’s have been completed at the 
Department of Lands and Survey.

(ASE) share in the accumulated interest that is 
due on the (ASE) share in the Jordan National 
Financial Building 

 (ASE) Shsare in the Jordan National Financial 
Building *

By a decision of the JSC board of commissioners, the JSC board of commissioners in 
their meeting held in the 14th of October, 2012, decided to proceed in implementing the 
Cabinet's above mentioned resolution, including addressing the ASE and the Securities 
Depository Center to issue the appropriate decision regarding their contribution in the 
building since they are under the Financial Surpluses Law.

Property and Equipments transferred from the 
project to (ASE)

Pursuant to the Cabinet of ministers resolution taken in their meeting which was held on 
the 3rd of November, 2012 , it was agreed to transfer the ownership title of the building  
belonging to the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC) to the benefit of Ministry of 
Finance. The building is cited on the piece of land No-208 in the basin 8 in Amman lands 
with an area of 15285 square meters. Its ownership title will be transferred from the name 
of the JSC to the treasury of the Hashemite kingdom of Jordan to be used of the Ministry 
of Finance under a formal contract of sale for a symbolic price.

Transfers from the project to (ASE)

According to the contract signed between the Ministry of Finance and JSC, the total cost of the 
“Jordan National Financial Center” project amounts to JOD32,389,394 as of 31 March 2013.
The ASE’s share of the cost equals to 65% of the total cost equivalent to JOD21,053,107 while 
the Security Depository Center’s share is 35% of the total cost equivalent to JOD11,336,287.



55

Amman Stock Exchange

Amman Stock Exchange

According to the decision of the Board of Directors in its meeting held 
on December 13, 2013 to approve the settlement of the advance 
above and its benefits to make an extra contribution to the ASE 
project in Jordanian National Financial Center. 				  
			 

7- Other Receivables

This  item consists of  :		

8 - Fixed Assets

A.This item consists of the following :

B-Procedures to transfer ownership share of the Amman Stock 
Exchange amounting to 28% in the  Jordan Securities Commission 
building  were not carried out with the related Authorities.

C-on the 15th December 2009, the ASE bought a land in the city of 
Irbid from the North Development Company, for the purpose of  
establishing a location for the Stock Exchange and the financial 
services companies.
The registration of the land for the benefit of the ASE has not yet 
been completed. 

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 
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6- Loan for Jordan Securities Commission

7- Other Receivables

This  item consists of  :
2013 2012
JD JD

Accrued revenue 40,611 51,100
Payments for Purchasing Computers 79,886 56,550
Prepaid expenses 114,789 35,132
Refundable deposits 10,050 10,050
Other secretariats 3,022 882
Total 248,358 153,714

11

According to the decision of the Board of Directors in its meeting held on December 13, 2013
to approve the settlement of the advance above and the benefits of it to make an extra 
contribution to the ASE project in Jordanian National Financial Center.

The (JSC) was granted an  advance of JD 1,654,100 for the purpose of purchasing the piece of 
land number (196) and basin number (8) of Amman City lands, in order to build the Jordan 
National Financial Center. The settlement of this amount will take place after the transfer of the 
land's title to the (ASE) and the (SDC) .

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE 
 SECURITIES MARKET

AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
Noted to Financial Statements

8- FIXED ASSETS

A. This item consists of the following :
2013 2012

COST AT 
BEGINNING OF 

THE YEAR 

ADDITIONS 
DURING THE 

YEAR

COST AT END 
OF THE YEAR 

DEPRECIATION 
 RATE

ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION 
AT END OF YEAR

NET BOOK 
VALUE

NET BOOK 
VALUE

JD JD JD % JD JD JD

Land ( note 8 c ) 1,251,800    - 1,251,800 -    - 1,251,800 1,251,800

Building ( note 8 b) 1,963,365    - 1,963,365 2.5 604,203 1,359,162 1,457,465

Furniture 117,874 10,454 128,328 10 99,019 29,309 31,298

Tools & Equipment 184,398 7,794 192,192 15 162,318 29,874 42,187

Computers 3,112,957 16,865 3,129,822 25 2,912,058 217,764 271,114

Vehicles 213,770 12,684 226,454 15 213,279 13,175 29,580

Other    - 330,000 330,000    - 330,000    -
Total 6,844,164 377,797 7,221,961 3,990,877 3,231,084 3,083,444

B-

C-

Registration of the land for the benefit of the (ASE) not yet completed. 

12

Procedures to transfer ownership share of the Amman Stock Exchange amounting to 28% in the  Jordan Securities Commission building
 were not carried out with the related Authorities.

 on the 15th  December 2009, the ASE  bought a land in the city of Irbid from  the North Development Company, for the purpose of establishing a 
location for the Stock Exchange and the financial services companies.
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9-Other  Payables
		

This  item consists of  :		

10-  Remuneration Provision							    
				  

In accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors taken in 
the meeting held on the 28th, of Dec, 2011, all employees’ working 
period in the Amman Financial Market has been considered for 
calculation purposes in accordance with article 65 of the internal 
by-law of the employees of the Amman Stock Exchange, and this 
came after deducting the  remuneration amounts that were paid in 
accordance with the By-law of the employees of Amman Financial 
Market number 12 for the year 1978. The legal consultant of the 
Amman Stock Exchange considered the Board of Directors’ decision 
as legitimate to be implemented.
However, the board of commissioners of the JSC, according to their 
decision No 33/2012 dated 1st March 2012, requested that the ASE 
revokes its decision. As a result this matter is still undetermined 
as the concerned employees filed a complaint to the Grievances 
Office, and the issue is being discussed between the JSC and 
Prime Ministry.									       
			 

11-  Reserves of the Building project of Jordanian National Financial Center	
	

Reserve has been taken  for the National Financial Center building 
project as 31st of December, 2012 in total of  25,000,000 JD And to 
cover capital expenditures for the project based on the decision by 
the Board of Directors							     
In Accordance to completing the procedures of transferring the 

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 

9- Other  Payables

This  item consists of  :
2013 2012
JD JD

Accrued expenses 220,448 76,350

Deposit for other 330,000    -

Unearned revenues 29,482 29,390

Board of Directors remunerations 30,000 35,000

Securities Commission withholding 9,851 20,921

Depository center withholding 657 657

Other 2,600 51,273

Total 623,038 213,591

10- Remuneration Provision

13

In accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors taken in the meeting held on the 
28th, of Dec, 2011, all employees' working period in the Amman Financial Market has 
been considered for calculation purposes in accordance with article 65 of the internal by-
law of the employees of the Amman Stock Exchange, and this came after deducting the  
remuneration amounts that were paid in accordance with the By-law of the employees of 
Amman Financial Market number 12 for the year 1978. The legal consultant of the 
Amman Stock Exchange considered the Board of Directors' decision as legitimate to be 
implemented.

However, the board of commissioners of the JSC, according to their decision No 33/2012
dated 1st March 2012, requested that the ASE revokes its decision. As a result this matter 
is still undetermined as the concerned employees filed a complaint to the Grievances 
Office, and the issue is being discussed between the JSC and Prime Ministry.
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ownership of the Jordan National Financial Center Building on 7th 
March 2013 for the Ministry of Finance, the provision of Jordan 
National Financial Building Project was closed in accumulated 
surplus account.	
			 

12- Reserve Property and equipment 					   
	 					   

In accordance with the Board of Directors decision No 3/2013 in 
their meeting held on January 13th, 2013, it was agreed to allocate 
a reserve for property and equipment in book value as 31st of 
December, 2012 which amounted to JD 3,056,690.

13- General Reserve								      
				  

According to the Board of Directors decision No 3/2013 in their 
meeting held on the 13th of January,  2013, it was agreed to build 
a general reserve to cover the deficit in the ASE’s revenues and 
expenses (if it happened) with amount that equals half the current 
expenditures and increasing the amount by 10% annually from the 
annual surplus of the ASE with not less than (JD 50,000) and not 
more than (JD 300,000) unless if the annually surplus for the (ASE) 
was less than (JD50,000) , if so the overall surplus will transfer to 
the above  reserve that does not exceed the accumulated amount 
in this reserve amount (JD 5,000,000) .	
	
The following is the Transactions on the General Reserve:

14- Provision for updating and Developing for the Stock System	
		  								      
According to the Board of Directors decision No 3/2013 in the meeting 
held on the 13th  of January, 2013, it was approved to build a provision 
for updating and developing for the electronic stock system including 
electronic trading at an amount (JD 4,000,000) in order  to cover the 
financial liabilities that will arise from the cost  updating and developing 
systems 					   

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
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11- Reserves of the Building project of Jordanian National Financial Center

12- Reserve Property and equipment 

13- General Reserve

The following is the Transactions on the General Reserve:

2013 2012
JD JD

Balance at the Beginning of the year 1,000,000    -
Add: Deducted During the year 300,000 1,000,000
Balance at the end of the year 1,300,000 1,000,000

14- Provision for updating and Developing for the Stock System

14

In Accordance to completing the procedures of transferring the ownership of the Jordan 
National Financial Center Building at 7th March 2013 for the Ministry of Finance, the 
provision of Jordan National Financial Building Project was closed in accumulated 
surplus account.

Reserve has been taken  for the National Financial Center building project as 31st of
December, 2012 in total of  25,000,000 JD And to cover capital expenditures for the project 
based on the decision by the Board of Directors

In accordance with the Board of Directors decision No 3/2013 in their meeting held on 
January 13th, 2013, it was agreed to allocate a reserve for property and equipment in book 
value as 31st of December, 2012 which amounted to JD 3,056,690.

according to the Board of Directors decision no 3/2013 in their meeting held on the 13th

of January, 2013, it was agreed to build a general reserve to cover the deficit in the ASE's 
revenues and expenses (if it happened) with amount that equals half the current 
expenditures and increasing the amount by 10% annually from the annual surplus of the 
ASE with not less than (JD 50,000) and not more than (JD 300,000) unless if the annually 
surplus for the (ASE) was less than (JD50,000) , if so the overall surplus will transfer to 
the above  reserve that does not exceed the accumulated amount in this reserve amount 
(JD 5,000,000) .

According to the Board of Directors decision no 3/2013 in the meeting held on the 13th  of 
January, 2013, it was approved to build a provision for updating and Developing for the 
electronic stock system Including electronic trading at an amount (JD 4,000,000) in order  
to cover the financial liabilities that will arise for the cost  updating and developing 
systems
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15- Revenues

This  item consists of :		

16- Other Revenue	

This  item consists of :

AMMAN STOCK EXCHANGE
AMMAN - THE HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

Notes to Financial Statements 

15- Revenues
This  item consists of :

2013 2012
JD JD

Trading  commisions 3,032,520 1,979,973
Listing Commission 684,927 700,247
Annual Membership fees 31,500 33,000
Total 3,748,947 2,713,220

16- Other Revenue
This  item consists of :

2013 2012
JD JD

4,671,797
   -

Data Distribution 87,230 104,930
Interest revenue 109,460 27,950
Trading and Inquiry Screens 182,050 219,650
Other revenues 148,267 79,500
Donations    - 453,220
Total 5,198,804 885,250

15

(ASE) share from the Deposits interest at the 
Jordan National Financial Building 
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15- Revenues
This  item consists of :

2013 2012
JD JD

Trading  commisions 3,032,520 1,979,973
Listing Commission 684,927 700,247
Annual Membership fees 31,500 33,000
Total 3,748,947 2,713,220

16- Other Revenue
This  item consists of :

2013 2012
JD JD

4,671,797
   -

Data Distribution 87,230 104,930
Interest revenue 109,460 27,950
Trading and Inquiry Screens 182,050 219,650
Other revenues 148,267 79,500
Donations    - 453,220
Total 5,198,804 885,250

15

(ASE) share from the Deposits interest at the 
Jordan National Financial Building 
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17-General & Administrative Expenses		
		

This item consists of :				  

*   the above amount represents the ASE share in saving rights for 
the period from the 1st of January 2012 to the 16th  of January 
2013, which is calculated in accordance to the rules of ASE for 
the year 2005. According to the opinion of the Legal Adviser (the 
internal Manual of the ASE Employees of 2005  should be applied 
on the ASE Staff, and the rights stipulated by this manual  are 
aquired rights for ASE staff and should not be harmed 
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17- General & Administrative Expenses
This item consists of :

2013 2012
JD JD

Salaries 1,035,718 897,412
Social Society 101,513 96,236
(ASE) Contribute to the saving Fund * 106,244    -

Board of directors remunerations and transportations 48,281 73,023
Participation in conferences and forums 8,377 19,087
Training 280 2,120
Stationary and Printing and Newspapers 15,713 23,502
Electricity & water 70,309 36,817
Heating 7,355 13,654
Communications 135,675 131,371
Hospitality 5,594 7,285
Miscellaneous & Clothes 3,274 921
Maintenance & Development programming 174,848 166,673
Fees and subscriptions 41,368 55,651
Professional fees 10,085 9,860
Insurance expenses 10,300 8,915
Medical expenses 89,612 67,910
Guarding Expenses 15,364 13,865
Cleaning 10,001 9,665
Bank expenses 2,823 1,893
General  maintenance expenses 197,096 191,632
Shared Services 173,107 202,949
Rent 82,933 88,376
Total 2,345,870 2,118,817

*

16

the above amount represents the (ASE's) share in saving rights for the period from 1st January 
2012 to 16th  January 2013 , which is calculated in accordance to the rules of (ASE's) for the 
year 2005 . According to the opinion of the Legal Adviser (the internal Manual of the (ASE's)
Employees of 2005  should be applied on the (ASE) Staff  , and the rights stipulated by this 
manual  are aquired rights for (ASE's) staff and should not be harmed
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18- Remuneration Provision				  
								      

The amount (JD 208,000) presents the remuneration  expenses for 
the period from 1st of January 2013 to 16th of January 2013  which 
is calculated in accordance to the rules of procedure to ASE for 
the year 2005. According to the opinion of the Legal Adviser (the 
procedure that should be applied on the ASE Staff is the rules  of 
procedure for the ASE Staff for the year 2005, and the rights  offered 
by this procedure  are earned rights for the ASE staff.	

19- Risk Management								      
				  
	 - Interest Rate Risk 			 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that arises from the fluctuations in 
the fair value and future  cash flows due to changes in interest 
rates.
The ASE is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing 
assets and liabilities such as deposits at banks.		
	

	 - Credit Risk					   
Credit Risk is the risk that debtors may be unable to fulfill their 
obligations to the ASE. The ASE assumes it’s not exposed 
to credit risk to a high degree since companies pay their due 
fees  in cash when timely matured. In addition the ASE keeps 
its balances and deposits at reputable banking institutions.	

- Currency Risk
Currency Risk is the risk that arising from fluctuation of 
exchange rate of currency.
Most of the ASE’s transactions are in Jordanian Dinars and 
U.S Dollar at USD 1.41 for each 1 JD.	
	
- Liquidity risk						    
Liquidity risk is the risk of inability of the ASE to  provide the 
necessary funding to fulfill its obligations in due dates and that 
liquidity risk management requires maintaining sufficient cash 
to meet its obligations and for the prevention of this risk, the 
ASE manages assets and liabilities and maintains sufficient 
balance of cash and cash equivalents.					   
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20- Law Suits at Courts							      	
				  

There are law suits filed against the ASE amounted to J.D 1,199,967 
and these law suits are still negotiable before related courts, all the 
law suits were filed against the ASE indirectly as most of the law 
suits were against all concerned parties including all capital market 
institutions in addition to the actual parties involved in the law 
suites.										        
		

21- Comparative Figures						      	
					   

Comparative year figures were reclassified and arranged to comply 
with the classification of the present fiscal year figures .			 
	





Statistical 
Appendix





65

Amman Stock Exchange

Amman Stock Exchange

Statistical Appendix Index

Title									             page

Trading Activity for the ASE						      66

Main Indicators of the ASE 						      79

Trading Values of Secondary Market				    80

Trading Volume at the ASE						      81

Trading Value at the ASE by Sector				    82

Top Ten Companies by Value Traded and Shares Traded	 83

Top Ten Companies by Market Capitalization			   84

Trading Volume of Bonds Market					     85

Free Float Weighted  Index 						      86

Price Index, Weighted By Market Capitalization		  87

Un-Weighted Price Index						      88

Major Financial Figures at the ASE					    89

Major Financial Ratios at the ASE					     90

Percentage of Non-Jordanian Ownership 
in Listed Companies							       91

Trading of Non-Jordanian Investors				    92

Transactions Through Securities Depository Center		  93

Value of Primary Market Issues					     94



     Annual Report 201366

Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013
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Trading Activity of the ASE During 2013
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013
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7,010
168.43

227

14
JO

R
D

A
N

 M
A

SA
K

EN
 FO

R
 LA

N
D

 &
 IN

D
U

STR
IA

L 
D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T PR
O

JEC
TS

131284
M

SK
N

2
0.64

0.96
0.44

0.57
29,949,980

44,382,276
12,885

362.60
211

15
A

M
O

U
N

 IN
TERN

ATIO
N

A
L FO

R IN
V

ESTM
EN

TS
131285

A
M

O
N

2
0.51

0.55
0.41

0.47
8,200,782

16,714,083
7,720

138.92
236

16
HIGH PERFORM

ANCE REAL ESTATE INVESTM
ENTS

131246
H

IPR
2

0.57
0.58

0.44
0.54

1,677,249
3,221,265

1,842
26.84

147
17

COM
PREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPM

ENT AND INVESTM
ENT

141036
ATTA

2
0.44

0.93
0.41

0.76
46,607,382

64,807,620
25,795

540.06
235

18
RESOURCES COM

PANY FOR DEVELOPM
ENT & INVESTM

ENT PLC
131027

JO
M

A
2

0.31
0.39

0.22
0.26

1,092,819
3,507,581

3,111
31.89

205
19

AL-TAJAM
OUAT FOR CATERING AND HOUSING CO PLC

131076
JN

TH
2

1.09
2.95

1.08
2.24

211,328,991
100,233,382

14,836
972.93

244
20

THE REAL ESTATE &
 INVESTM

ENT PORTFOLIO CO.
131101

PETT
2

0.58
0.66

0.48
0.53

172,352
299,703

477
3.00

130
21

JO
RD

A
N

 IN
TERN

ATIO
N

A
L IN

V
ESTM

EN
T CO

.
131253

JIIG
2

0.78
0.77

0.71
0.77

1,837
2,549

29
0.03

6
22

ARAB EAST FOR REAL ESTATE INVESTM
ENTS CO

131218
R

EA
L

2
1.11

2.11
1.08

1.47
7,603,400

4,679,102
3,084

46.81
196

23
SHIRA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPM

ENT &
 INVESTM

ENTS
131278

SH
R

A
2

0.62
1.11

0.49
0.66

10,723,536
15,080,475

9,135
162.16

238
24

AM
AD INVESTM

ENT &
 REAL ESTATE DEVELOPM

ENT
131234

A
M

A
D

1
1.87

1.95
1.45

1.60
1,322,136

758,486
883

9.48
120

25
INT'L ARABIAN DEVELOPM

ENT AND INVESTM
ENT TRADING CO.

131225
IN

M
A

2
0.71

0.96
0.46

0.56
40,317,467

51,915,595
20,057

741.65
242

26
C

O
N

TEM
PR

O
 FO

R
 H

O
U

SIN
G

 PR
O

JEC
TS

131241
C

O
H

O
1

1.63
1.80

1.30
1.54

14,098,245
9,202,820

1,960
153.38

186

27
A

LEN
TK

A
EYA

 FO
R

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T&
R

EA
LESTATE 

D
EV

ELO
PM

EN
T C

O
M

PA
N

Y
 PLC

131287
EN

TK
2

0.85
0.96

0.42
0.51

19,825,892
31,985,449

17,390
649.26

241

28
PALACES REALESTATE &

 DEVELOPM
ENT P.L.C

131257
PR

ED
2

0.75
0.83

0.67
0.71

1,812,861
2,411,622

1,691
60.29

168
29

IH
D

ATH
IAT C

O
-O

R
D

IN
ATES

131236
IH

C
O

2
0.92

0.96
0.63

0.93
190,738

216,504
385

7.22
82

30
ARAB INVESTORS UNION CO. FOR REAL ESTATES DEVELOPING

131247
U

N
A

I
2

0.66
0.76

0.49
0.53

1,358,789
2,183,114

2,599
72.77

193
31

AL-TAHDITH FOR REAL ESTATE INVESTM
ENTS COM

PANY
131265

TH
D

I
2

0.61
0.95

0.61
0.75

697,064
891,611

1,976
38.77

197
32

ALSHAM
EKHA FOR REALESTATE AND FINANCIAL INVESTM

ENTS
131011

V
FED

2
1.48

1.26
0.70

0.78
250,520

255,963
1,073

21.33
117

33
M

ID
D

LE EA
ST D

IV
ERSIFIED

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
131245

M
ED

I
3

0.15
2.29

0.13
1.07

2,577,551
1,833,044

4,690
333.28

167
34

ZAHRAT ALURDON REAL ESTATE AND HOTELS INVESTM
ENT

131242
ZA

H
I

3
1.42

1.63
1.42

1.63
776

510
6

0.10
6

TO
TA

L
903,497,150

1,084,327,647
339,897

FIN
A

N
C

IA
L SEC

TO
R

 TO
TA

L
2,221,449,153

1,878,528,668
609,997
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

Services
Health Care Services

C
ode

Sym
bol

M
arket

Last 
H

igh
Low

C
losing

Value
Shares

N
o. of

Turnover
Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transac-
tions

R
atio 

D
ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
TH

E CO
N

SU
LTA

N
T &

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T G
RO

U
P

131207
C

IC
O

2
0.95

0.93
0.70

0.77
390,955

530,125
276

2.41
82

2
IB

N
 A

LH
A

Y
TH

A
M

 H
O

SPITA
L C

O
M

PA
N

Y
131279

IB
N

H
1

1.03
1.08

0.88
0.98

442,673
435,315

359
2.18

94

3
A

L-B
ILA

D
 M

ED
IC

A
L SERV

IC
ES

131002
A

B
M

S
1

1.21
1.48

1.19
1.48

447,559
334,137

353
1.77

116

4
INTERNATIONAL  FOR M

EDICAL INVESTM
ENT

141021
IC

M
I

2
1.27

1.99
1.28

1.68
1,754,152

1,114,113
208

24.76
76

TO
TA

L
3,035,340

2,413,690
1,196

Educational Services
1

TH
E A

R
A

B
 IN

TER
N

ATIO
N

L FO
R

 
 ED

U
C

ATIO
N

 &
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T.

131052
A

IEI
1

2.91
3.70

2.90
3.69

2,068,307
632,936

932
1.56

172

2
PETR

A
 ED

U
C

ATIO
N

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

131221
PED

C
1

5.71
5.80

5.05
5.52

742,909
142,792

63
0.89

28

3
A

L-ZA
RQ

A ED
U

CATIO
N

A
L &

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
131051

ZEIC
1

2.34
2.91

2.23
2.90

1,270,603
516,008

719
3.44

153

4
ITTIH

A
D

 SC
H

O
O

LS
131093

ITSC
1

1.25
1.74

1.25
1.45

2,646,034
1,721,762

988
11.48

106

5
AL-ISRA FOR EDUCATION AND INVESTM

ENT "PLC"
131220

A
IFE

1
3.83

4.51
3.50

4.50
7,829,702

2,161,338
486

14.41
107

6
PH

ILA
D

ELPH
IA

 IN
TER

N
ATIO

N
A

L ED
U

-
C

ATIO
N

A
L IN

V
ESTM

EN
T C

O
M

PA
N

Y
131222

PIEC
1

3.03
3.74

3.00
3.74

322,543
98,214

106
0.66

46

TO
TA

L
14,880,099

5,273,050
3,294
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

Hotels and Tourism
C

ode
Sym

bol
M

arket
Last 

H
igh

Low
C

losing
Value

Shares
N

o. of
Turnover

Trading
N

o.
  C

om
pany's N

am
e

C
losing

Price
Price

Price
Traded

Traded
Transactions

R
atio 

D
ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
ZA

R
A

 IN
V

ESTEM
EN

T H
O

LD
IN

G
131067

ZA
R

A
2

0.79
0.80

0.54
0.54

318,498
509,167

796
0.34

146
2

AL-TAJAM
OUAT FOR TOURISTIC PROJECTS CO PLC

131019
TA

JM
2

0.36
0.60

0.35
0.50

22,444,920
48,166,382

13,811
48.17

234
3

M
ED

ITERRA
N

EA
N

 TO
U

RISM
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T

131035
M

D
TR

2
2.04

2.27
1.86

2.24
1,202,477

613,941
82

1.36
32

4
A

L-D
A

W
LIYA

H
 FO

R
 H

O
TELS &

 M
A

LLS
131098

M
A

LL
1

1.02
1.06

0.91
1.00

1,840,518
1,875,009

928
4.34

166
5

A
R

A
B

 IN
TER

N
ATIO

N
A

L H
O

TELS
131005

A
IH

O
1

1.83
1.90

1.63
1.90

407,394
238,386

268
0.75

97
6

M
O

D
EL R

ESTA
U

R
A

N
TS C

O
M

PA
N

Y
 PLC

131272
FO

O
D

3
0.21

0.24
0.13

0.16
2,262,580

11,018,566
3,139

44.07
163

7
JORDAN PROJECTS FOR TOURISM

 DEVELOPM
ENT

131211
JPTD

2
5.75

5.75
5.47

5.47
1,305,818

238,721
2

1.11
2

8
A

L- SH
A

R
Q

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

TS 
PR

O
JEC

TS(H
O

LD
IN

G
)

131078
A

IPC
2

1.77
1.80

1.74
1.74

143,254
80,745

21
0.51

8

9
W

INTER VALLEY TOURISM
 INVESTM

ENT CO.
131235

W
IVA

2
0.53

0.67
0.39

0.43
361,801

646,495
897

4.49
136

10
A

L-R
A

K
A

EZ IN
V

ESTM
EN

T C
O

.
131261

R
IC

S
2

0.78
0.78

0.55
0.69

3,837,109
5,824,018

5,548
46.59

237
11

SU
RA D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T &
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T PLC

131283
SU

R
A

2
0.34

0.54
0.30

0.40
36,946,451

86,815,793
26,604

754.92
238

12
JO

R
D

A
N

 H
O

TELS  &
 TO

U
R

ISM
131003

JO
H

T
1

5.25
5.62

5.26
5.61

216,079
39,863

85
0.40

31
TO

TA
L

71,286,900
156,067,086

52,181

Transportation
1

ALIA- THE ROYAL JORDANIAN AIRLINES PLC.
131213

R
JA

L
2

0.63
0.89

0.55
0.58

44,450,364
60,099,814

28,429
71.23

242
2

M
ASAFAT FOR SPECIALISED TRANSPORT

131243
M

SFT
2

0.67
0.83

0.54
0.78

17,406,240
25,095,861

13,092
140.59

243
3

JO
R

D
A

N
 N

ATIO
N

A
L SH

IPPIN
G

 LIN
ES

131012
SH

IP
1

1.84
2.14

1.33
1.53

994,008
560,276

1,350
3.74

189
4

SALAM
 INTERNATIONL TRANSPORT & TRADING

131034
SITT

2
0.62

0.69
0.55

0.65
1,435,826

2,269,666
2,881

15.13
198

5
R

U
M

 G
R

O
U

P FO
R

 TR
A

N
SPO

RTATIO
N

 &
 

TO
U

R
ISM

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
131262

RU
M

M
2

0.77
0.83

0.63
0.79

2,326,835
3,146,514

2,959
22.48

198

6
TRANSPORT& INVESTM

ENT BARTER COM
PANY

131208
N

A
Q

L
2

0.85
1.57

0.75
0.76

29,978,920
26,828,268

14,600
188.56

240
7

JORDAN EXPRESS TOURIST TRANSPORT
131080

JETT
1

1.87
1.98

1.63
1.73

269,335
150,399

298
1.39

94

8
JO

R
D

A
N

  IN
V

ESTM
EN

T &
 TO

U
R

ISM
 

TR
A

N
SPO

RT(A
LFA

)
131083

A
LFA

2
1.70

1.65
1.17

1.22
6,963

5,275
12

0.07
8

9
UNITED GROUP FOR LAND TRANSPORT CO. P.L.C

131288
U

G
LT

3
1.05

5.37
5.37

1.05
5,370

1,000
1

0.02
1

10
TR

U
ST IN

TER
N

ATIO
N

A
L TR

A
N

SPO
RT

131055
TRTR

2
0.52

0.52
0.50

0.52
121

241
2

0.01
2

11
U

B
O

U
R

 LO
G

ISTIC
 SERV

IC
ES PLC

131290
TR

U
K

2
2.13

2.23
0.42

0.50
33,849,926

26,922,938
16,474

878.82
240

12
AL-FATIHOUN AL-ARAB FOR INVESTM

ENT
141218

FATI
2

2.09
3.02

2.04
2.60

51,856,493
20,193,589

5,998
643.34

198
TO

TA
L

182,580,403
165,273,841

86,096

Technology and Com
m

unications
1

JO
R

D
A

N
 TELEC

O
M

131206
JTEL

1
5.30

5.48
2.87

4.10
17,470,222

4,255,378
8,533

1.70
243

TO
TA

L
17,470,222

4,255,378
8,533



     Annual Report 201372

Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

M
edia

C
ode

Sym
bol

M
arket

Last 
H

igh
Low

C
losing

Value
Shares

N
o. of

Turnover
Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays
Price

       
(JD

)
%

1
JO

R
D

A
N

 PR
ESS FO

U
N

D
ATIO

N
/A

L-R
A

'I
131013

PR
ES

1
4.14 

4.19
2.69

2.92
3,157,357

964,198
2,380

9.64
206

2
JORDAN PRESS &

 PUBLISHING/(AD-DUSTOUR)
131030

JO
PP

2
0.61 

0.61
0.39

0.46
404,044

753,875
810

16.75
148

TO
TA

L
3,561,402

1,718,073
3,190

Utilities and Energy
1

JO
R

D
A

N
 ELEC

TR
IC

 PO
W

ER
131004

JO
EP

1
3.34

3.59
2.61

3.26
13,518,981

4,129,895
6,657

5.46
245

2
JO

R
D

A
N

 PETR
O

LEU
M

 R
EFIN

ERY
142041

JO
PT

1
5.78

6.23
4.61

4.85
31,386,272

5,808,130
11,631

14.52
243

3
IR

B
ID

 D
ISTR

IC
T ELEC

TR
IC

ITY
131010

IR
EL

1
9.61

13.00
8.65

10.25
1,000,159

95,435
911

1.19
182

TO
TA

L
45,905,412

10,033,460
19,199
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

Com
m

ercial Services
C

ode
Sym

bol
M

arket
Last 

H
igh

Low
C

losing
Value

Shares
N

o. of
Turnover

Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
A

FA
Q

 FO
R

 EN
ER

G
Y

 C
O

. P.L.C
131286

M
A

N
E

1
1.13

2.25
1.12

2.06
36,231,852

23,471,105
17,836

21.34
243

2
SO

U
TH

 ELEC
TR

O
N

IC
S

131230
SEC

O
3

0.08
0.14

0.07
0.09

2,919,377
28,162,068

6,026
56.32

240
3

O
FFTEC

H
O

LD
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P PLC

131228
O

FTC
2

0.27
0.36

0.27
0.29

2,594,089
8,251,169

5,349
19.65

216
4

BINDAR TRADING &
 INVESTM

ENT CO . P.L.C
131219

B
IN

D
2

0.92
1.27

0.83
0.85

1,898,820
1,880,620

1,344
9.40

155
5

JO
R

D
A

N
 TR

A
D

E FA
C

131062
JO

TF
2

1.04
1.10

1.00
1.06

14,997
14,572

46
0.09

24
6

D
A

RW
ISH

 A
L-K

H
A

LILI &
 SO

N
S CO

. PLC
131223

D
K

H
S

3
0.09

0.14
0.06

0.08
1,369,601

13,566,996
3,273

90.45
168

7
EN

JA
Z FO

R D
EV

ELO
PM

EN
T &

 M
U

LTI PRO
J-

ECTS CO
M

PA
N

Y P.L.C
141058

LIPO
2

1.22
1.63

0.96
1.18

15,348,440
11,971,229

4,857
88.68

206

8
JO

R
D

A
N

IA
N

 D
U

TY
 FR

EE SH
O

PS
131022

JD
FS

1
10.98

12.25
10.00

12.25
753,857

67,204
303

0.90
89

9
CO

M
PREH

EN
SIV

E LEA
SIN

G
 CO

M
PA

N
Y PLC

131264
LEA

S
2

2.20
2.50

1.91
2.50

25,086
11,859

36
0.17

18
10

SPECIA
LIZED

 JO
RD

A
N

IA
N

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
131086

SIJC
2

0.64
0.75

0.46
0.51

4,615,125
7,157,957

6,499
159.07

231
11

JORDAN INTERNATIONAL TRADING CENTER
131023

JITC
2

1.19
1.59

1.09
1.35

533,948
430,229

659
12.65

133
12

SPECIA
LIZED

 TRA
D

IN
G

 &
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T

131081
SPTI

2
0.61

0.73
0.47

0.61
3,009,054

4,789,697
5,276

155.76
168

13
N

O
PA

R FO
R TRA

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
131238

N
O

TI
2

1.14
1.18

1.10
1.16

86,430
75,574

27
5.35

9
TO

TA
L

69,400,676
99,850,279

51,531

SERV
IC

E SEC
TO

R
 TO

TA
L

408,120,453
444,884,857

225,220
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

Industries
Pharm

aceutical and M
edical Industries

C
ode

Sym
bol

M
arket

Last 
H

igh
Low

C
losing

Value
Shares

N
o. of

Turnover
Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
D

A
R

 A
L D

AW
A

 D
EV

ELO
PM

EN
T &

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
141012

D
A

D
I

2
1.25

1.99
1.22

1.87
3,211,529

2,101,228
4,080

8.41
230

2
THE JORDANIAN PHARM

ACEUTICAL M
ANUFACTURING

141204
JPH

M
1

1.14
1.19

0.80
0.80

790,572
899,422

1,485
4.50

191

3
MIDDLE EAST PHARMA. & CHMICAL IND. & MEDICAL APPLIANCES

141073
M

PH
A

2
1.78

2.08
1.22

1.41
5,552

3,493
57

0.04
26

4
H

AYAT PH
A

R
M

A
C

EU
TIC

A
L IN

D
U

STR
IES C

O
.

141210
H

PIC
1

2.10
2.19

1.25
1.48

760,990
506,607

1,123
5.33

157

5
A

R
A

B
 C

EN
TER

 FO
R

 PH
A

R
M

.&
 C

H
EM

IC
A

LS
141023

A
PH

C
2

1.73
1.73

0.74
0.89

29,980
30,586

249
0.61

43

6
PH

ILA
D

ELPH
IA

 PH
A

R
M

A
C

EEU
TIC

A
LS

141219
PH

IL
2

0.63
1.63

0.62
1.61

4,419,191
3,697,384

818
123.25

111

TO
TA

L
9,217,814

7,238,720
7,812

Chem
ical Industries

1
JO

R
D

A
N

 IN
D

U
STR

IA
L R

ESO
U

R
C

ES
141055

JO
IR

2
0.28

0.34
0.24

0.33
6,658,184

22,415,767
9,025

125.42
237

2
TH

E IN
D

U
STRIA

L CO
M

M
ERCIA

L &
 A

G
RICU

LTU
RA

L
141009

IC
A

G
1

2.04
2.84

1.80
2.71

12,065,076
5,708,019

1,634
38.16

96

3
THE ARAB PESTICIDES & VETERINARY DRUGS M

FG. CO.
141209

M
B

ED
1

1.64
1.99

1.50
1.90

3,166,097
1,806,382

1,660
15.05

206

4
N

ATIO
N

A
L C

H
LO

R
IN

E IN
D

U
STR

IES
141054

N
ATC

1
0.82

0.90
0.77

0.82
793,122

952,011
1,046

10.58
160

5
INTERM

EDIATE PETROCHEM
ICALS INDUSTRIES CO. LTD.

141217
IPC

H
2

0.50
0.71

0.39
0.56

5,468,561
10,009,062

7,273
142.99

235

6
CO

M
PREH

EN
SIV

E M
U

LTIPLE PRO
JECT CO

M
PA

N
Y

141086
IN

O
H

2
1.20

1.70
0.82

1.33
812,861

749,620
318

14.28
69

7
IN

D
U

STRIA
L IN

D
U

STRIES &
 M

ATCH
/JIM

CO
141032

IN
M

J
2

2.54
5.14

0.64
0.72

78,577
69,874

336
2.33

85

8
JO

R
D

A
N

 C
H

EM
IC

A
L IN

D
U

STR
IES

141026
JO

IC
2

1.50
1.91

1.43
1.90

129,009
79,119

123
4.40

45

9
U

N
IV

ER
SA

L C
H

EM
IC

A
L IN

D
U

STR
IES

141027
U

N
IC

2
0.95

0.92
0.56

0.57
51,684

86,864
62

5.79
30

10
PR

EM
IER

 B
U

SIN
ESS A

N
D

 PR
O

JEC
TS C

O
.LTD

141010
A

C
D

T
2

1.52
1.52

1.12
1.12

37,376
27,098

67
2.04

22

TO
TA

L
29,260,548

41,903,816
21,544



75

Amman Stock Exchange

Amman Stock Exchange

Table (1)
Trading Activity of The ASE  During 2013

Paper and Cardboard Industries
C

ode
Sym

bol
M

arket
Last 

H
igh

Low
C

losing
Value

Shares
N

o. of
Turnover

Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
A

RA
B CO

M
PA

N
Y

 FO
R IN

V
ESTM

EN
T PRO

JECTS
141003

A
PC

T
2

0.20
0.57

0.17
0.34

8,711,211
21,080,732

10,961
210.81

237

2
JO

R
D

A
N

 PA
PER

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

 FA
C

TO
R

IES
141017

JO
PC

2
0.62

0.64
0.36

0.37
30,057

64,536
296

0.86
87

3
PEA

R
L- SA

N
ITA

RY
 PA

PER
 C

O
N

V
ERTIN

G
141081

PER
L

3
8.75

8.75
0.95

3.42
4,775

1,341
9

0.27
6

TO
TA

L
8,746,043

21,146,609
11,266

Printing and Pakaging
1

A
L-EK

B
A

L PR
IN

TIN
G

 A
N

D
 PA

C
K

A
G

IN
G

141100
EK

PC
1

0.86
1.11

0.83
1.01

110,063
109,987

123
2.20

52
2

U
N

IO
N

 A
D

VA
N

C
ED

 IN
D

U
STR

IES
141110

U
A

D
I

2
3.60

3.70
3.42

3.60
1,549,955

430,766
116

14.36
39

TO
TA

L
1,660,018

540,753
239

Food and Beverages
1

N
ATIO

N
A

L PO
U

LTRY
141084

N
ATP

2
1.55

1.55
1.48

1.55
499

333
5

0.00
4.00

2
JO

RD
A

N
 PO

U
LTRY PRO

CESSIN
G

 &
 M

A
RK

ETIN
G

141002
JPPC

2
0.44

0.56
0.33

0.39
37,764

83,742
235

0.36
62.00

3
SIN

IO
R

A
 FO

O
D

 IN
D

U
STR

IES PLC
141222

SN
R

A
2

3.30
3.30

1.20
1.75

5,788,972
2,762,891

1,222
5.67

93
4

TH
E A

RA
B IN

TERN
ATIO

N
A

L FO
O

D
 FA

CTO
RIES

141092
A

IFF
1

1.30
1.64

1.39
1.64

25,715
17,157

36
0.16

22
5

G
EN

ER
A

L IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
141029

G
EN

I
1

2.82
3.02

2.55
2.98

224,454
77,013

37
0.77

22
6

N
U

TR
I D

A
R

141094
N

D
A

R
3

0.93
1.01

0.95
1.73

501,747
737,284

18
0.02

8
7

U
N

IV
ER

SA
L M

O
D

ER
N

 IN
D

U
STR

IES
141052

U
M

IC
1

0.84
0.90

0.73
0.85

1,175,588
1,410,503

2,227
23.51

207
8

FIRST NATIONAL  VEGETABLE OIL INDUSTRIES CO.
141205

FN
V

O
3

0.18
0.27

0.18
0.25

36,421
163,993

464
3.64

102
9

JO
R

D
A

N
 D

A
IRY

141004
JO

D
A

2
1.94

2.03
1.75

1.85
11,530

6,377
80

0.16
44

10
JO

R
D

A
N

 V
EG

ETA
B

LE O
IL IN

D
U

STR
IES

141141
JV

O
I

2
1.11

1.11
0.86

0.86
5,001

5,447
32

0.14
10

TO
TA

L
7,807,690

5,264,740
4,356

Tobacco and Cigarette 
1

A
L-EQ

B
A

L IN
V

ESTM
EN

T C
O

M
PA

N
Y

 LTD
141048

EIC
O

1
9.45

15.10
8.74

14.00
17,569,902

1,423,976
5,372

5.70
239

2
U

N
IO

N
 TO

BA
CCO

 &
 CIG

A
RETTE IN

D
U

STRIES
141074

U
TO

B
1

5.00
11.73

5.00
7.65

21,096,543
2,850,001

3,510
18.90

161
TO

TA
L

38,666,446
4,273,977

8,882
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

M
ining and Extraction Industries

C
ode

Sym
bol

M
arket

Last 
H

igh
Low

C
losing

Value
Shares

N
o. of

Turnover
Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays
Price

       
(JD

)
%

1
TH

E A
R

A
B

 PO
TA

SH
141043

A
PO

T
1

46.51 
49.45 

20.47 
28.05 

7,532,460
241,774

2,053
0.29

138
2

JO
R

D
A

N
 PH

O
SPH

ATE M
IN

ES
141018

JO
PH

1
13.00 

13.90 
6.80 

7.15 
47,365,129

4,388,995
12,027

5.85
244

3
TH

E JO
R

D
A

N
 C

EM
EN

T FA
C

TO
R

IES
141042

JO
C

M
2

1.37 
1.57 

0.89 
1.34 

2,302,793
1,764,995

4,252
2.92

236
4

N
O

RTH
ER

N
 C

EM
EN

T C
O

.
141224

N
C

C
O

1
3.17 

3.17 
1.30 

3.00 
889,083

437,829
1,236

0.80
130

5
JO

R
D

A
N

 STEEL
141070

JO
ST

1
1.32 

1.88 
1.29 

1.31 
18,607,493

12,367,662
14,442

35.34
244

6
UNITED IRON &

 STEEL M
ANUFACTURING CO.  P.L.C

141220
M

A
N

S
2

1.62 
1.69 

1.17 
1.20 

927,681
693,352

1,747
2.16

160
7

N
ATIO

N
A

L A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

 IN
D

U
STR

IA
L

141091
N

ATA
2

0.38 
0.68 

0.35 
0.68 

13,864,070
25,827,667

11,132
286.97

241
8

A
R

A
B

 A
LU

M
IN

IU
M

  IN
D

U
STRY

 /A
R

A
L

141006
A

A
LU

1
1.30 

1.55 
1.15 

1.48 
316,191

229,232
297

3.40
106

9
JORDAN COM

PANY FOR ELECTRICITY AND OIL SHALE
141216

JO
SE

3
1.06 

1.04 
0.72 

0.78 
640,229

736,865
1,863

14.74
208

10
TR

AV
ERTIN

E C
O

M
PA

N
Y

 LTD
141203

TR
AV

2
0.69 

1.04 
0.66 

0.94 
60,577

74,354
166

1.62
34

11
IN

TER
N

ATIO
N

A
L SILIC

A
 IN

D
U

STR
IA

L
141170

SLC
A

3
3.25 

3.30 
3.15 

3.30 
8,940

2,835
5

0.12
4

12
G

EN
ER

A
L M

IN
IN

G
  C

PM
PA

N
Y

 PLC
141005

G
EN

M
2

5.21 
5.00 

3.90 
3.90 

4,113
942

19
0.06

13
13

N
ATIO

N
A

L STEEL IN
D

U
STRY

141011
N

A
ST

2
0.22 

0.94 
0.17 

0.86 
1,113,165

2,759,390
3,142

235.59
186

TO
TA

L
93,631,923

49,525,892
52,381

Engineering and Construction

1
R

EA
D

Y
 M

IX
 C

O
N

C
RTE 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

STR
U

C
TIO

N
 SU

PPLIES
141065

R
M

C
C

2
2.67

2.90
2.34

2.84
16,359,558

6,428,832
991

19.32
161

2
A

L-Q
U

D
S R

EA
D

Y
 M

IX
141208

A
Q

RM
2

0.24
0.37

0.22
0.26

1,354,955
4,743,676

3,529
33.89

194

3
A

SSA
S FO

R
 C

O
N

C
R

ETE PR
O

D
U

C
TS C

O
. LTD

141214
A

SA
S

2
0.25

0.48
0.24

0.39
5,486,866

15,193,918
7,148

126.62
226

4
A

R
A

B
IA

N
 STEEL PIPES M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
IN

G
141098

ASPM
M

1
2.45

2.64
2.09

2.64
944,563

383,746
370

4.26
89

5
R

U
M

 A
LA

D
D

IN
 IN

D
U

STR
IES

141077
IEN

G
2

1.27
1.38

0.48
0.95

23,320,050
25,799,806

13,750
359.57

238

6
JO

R
D

A
N

 W
O

O
D

 IN
D

U
STR

IES / JW
IC

O
141038

W
OOD

2
2.00

3.09
1.50

2.52
2,199,809

761,457
189

7.72
42

7
TH

E JO
R

D
A

N
 PIPES M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
IN

G
141019

JO
PI

2
0.76

1.82
0.64

1.71
9,010,962

7,601,893
7,029

212.64
227

8
A

L-JA
N

U
O

B
 FILTER

S M
A

N
U

FA
C

TU
R

IN
G

141024
A

JFM
3

0.81
0.92

0.77
0.92

7,345
8,707

47
0.46

13
TO

TA
L

58,684,107
60,922,035

33,053
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Table (1)
Trading Activity of the ASE  During 2013

Electric Industries
C

ode
Sym

bol
M

arket
Last 

H
igh

Low
C

losing
Value

Shares
N

o. of
Turnover

Trading

N
o.

  C
om

pany's N
am

e
C

losing
Price

Price
Price

Traded
Traded

Transactions
R

atio 
D

ays

Price
       

(JD
)

%

1
U

N
ITED

 C
A

B
LE IN

D
U

STR
IES

141215
U

C
IC

2
0.40

0.80
0.38

0.68
11,787,763

18,719,392
7,838

46.80
221

2
M

ID
D

LE EA
ST SPEC

IA
LIZED

 C
A

B
LES C

O
M

-
PA

N
Y

 /M
ESC

_JO
R

D
A

N
 PLC

141059
JN

C
C

3
0.13

0.30
0.10

0.29
445,038

2,648,970
1,573

6.81
187

3
N

ATIO
N

A
L C

A
B

LE &
 W

IR
E M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
IN

G
141039

W
IR

E
2

0.37
0.46

0.27
0.44

2,767,791
7,355,827

4,821
38.11

231

4
A

R
A

B
 ELEC

TR
IC

A
L IN

D
U

STR
IES

141072
A

EIN
2

1.01
1.34

0.56
0.70

42,893,673
44,755,893

25,023
745.93

243
TO

TA
L

57,894,265
73,480,082

39,255

Textiles, Leather and Clothings
1

TH
E JO

R
D

A
N

 W
O

R
STED

 M
ILLS

141014
JO

W
M

1
4.69

4.69
3.65

4.54
1,403,174

351,306
927

2.34
141

2
EL-ZA

Y
 R

EA
D

Y
 W

EA
R

 M
A

N
U

FA
C

TU
R

IN
G

141061
ELZA

2
0.27

0.50
0.25

0.33
23,185,481

61,075,039
21,949

407.17
236

3
A

R
A

B
 W

EAV
ER

S U
N

IO
N

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

 P.L.C
141212

A
RW

U
2

2.20
2.20

2.15
2.15

1,088
500

2
0.00

2

4
C

EN
TU

RY
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T G

R
O

U
P

131097
C

EIG
1

0.66
1.28

0.63
1.26

13,697,965
16,661,970

13,636
320.94

243

5
JO

R
D

A
N

 C
LO

TH
IN

G
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y
 P.L.C

141213
C

JC
C

2
0.70

0.86
0.43

0.44
3,234,990

4,969,987
6,475

124.25
235

6
A

K
A

RY FO
R IN

D
U

STRIES A
N

D
 REA

L ESTATE 
IN

V
ESTM

EN
TS

141031
W

O
O

L
2

1.00
1.27

0.81
0.87

1,868,676
1,893,952

1,559
157.83

172

TO
TA

L
43,391,372

84,952,754
44,548

Glass and Ceram
ic Industries

1
IN

TER
N

ATIO
N

A
L C

ER
A

M
IC

 IN
D

U
STR

IES
141078

IC
ER

3
0.24

0.24
0.18

0.22
104,260

502,077
480

8.37
84

2
JO

R
D

A
N

 C
ER

A
M

IC
 IN

D
U

STR
IES

141015
JO

C
F

2
0.87

2.23
0.81

1.06
48,621,095

32,631,970
15,405

870.19
239

TO
TA

L
48,725,355

33,134,047
15,885

IN
D

U
STR

IA
L SEC

TO
R

 TO
TA

L
397,685,580

382,383,425
239,221

G
R

A
N

D
 TO

TA
L

3,027,255,187
2,705,796,950

1,074,438
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Table (1)
Bonds Activity for the ASE During 2013

N
o.

B
ond's N

am
e

Sym
bol

 C
losing
Price

V
alue

T
raded 
)JD

( 

 N
o. of

C
ontracts

 N
o. of

B
onds

1
A

R
A

B
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 H
O

T
E

L
S B

O
N

D
S 03

A
H

03
1010.00

2,039,728
14

2058

Total
2,039,728

14
2,058
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Table (2)
Main Indicators of the ASE

20132012201120102009INDICATOR 
240243247277272Number of Listed Companies

18,233.519,141.519,272.821,858.222,526.9Market Capitalization (JD million)

3,027.31,978.82,850.36,690.09,665.3Value Traded (JD million)

12.47.911.526.838.8Daily Average Trading Value (JD million)

2,705.82,384.14,072.36,988.96,022.5No. of Traded Shares (million)

1,074.4975.01,318.31,880.22,964.6No. of Transactions (thousand)

245251247250249No. of Trading Days

38.033.958.2102.291.3Turnover Ratio (%)

2065.81957.61995.12373.62533.5ASE General Free Float Weighted  Index (point)

4336.74593.94648.45318.05520.1ASE General Weighted Price Index (point)

585.1552.3606.8834.41057.7ASE General Un-weighted Price Index (point)

2.10.00.60.10.8No. of Traded Bonds (thousand)

2.00.00.60.12.5Value of Traded Bonds (JD million)

14.715.622.626.314.4P/E Ratio (times)

1.31.51.51.71.8P/BV (times)

4.64.63.32.72.8Dividend Yield Ratio (%)

49.951.751.349.648.9Non-Jordanian Ownership of Market Cap. (%)

939.5322.9555.81,036.62,135.5Non-Jordanian Buying (JD million)

792.6285.3477.21,051.22,139.3Non-Jordanian Selling (JD million)

146.937.678.6-14.6-3.8Net Investment of Non-Jordanians (JD million)

 83.0 93.5 102.7 122.7 149.6Market Capitalization / GDP (%)
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Table ( 3 )
 Trading Values of the Secondary Market *

( JD )

 Transactions

Period Shares Bonds Excluded From Total

Trading
2004 3,793,251,050 6,031,856 113,991,076 3,913,273,982

2005 16,871,051,948 3,135,705 940,846,140 17,815,033,793

2006 14,209,870,592 1,868,010 835,949,861 15,047,688,463

2007 12,348,101,910 3,799,874 790,977,039 13,142,878,823

2008 20,318,014,547 605,819 618,062,011 20,936,682,377

2009 9,665,312,327 2,529,800 218,015,354 9,885,857,482

2010 6,689,987,155 140,175 142,316,104 6,832,443,434

2011 2,850,252,628 555,039 321,638,265 3,172,445,932

2012 1,978,813,878 0 43,254,773 2,022,068,651

2013 3,027,255,187 2,039,728 109,144,025 3,138,438,940

* Trading value of shares includes right issues' figures starting from 2006
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Table ( 4 )
Trading Volumes at the ASE *

Period  No. of Change  Trading Value Change  No. of Change

Shares )%( )JD( )%( Transactions )%(

2004 1,338,703,981  32.7 3,793,251,050  104.5 1,178,163  49.9

2005 2,581,744,423  92.9 16,871,051,948  344.8 2,392,509  103.1

2006 4,104,285,135  59.0 14,209,870,592 )15.8( 3,442,558  43.9

2007 4,479,369,609  9.1 12,348,101,910 )13.1( 3,457,915  0.4

2008 5,442,267,689  21.5 20,318,014,547  64.5 3,780,934  9.3

2009 6,022,471,335  10.7 9,665,310,642 )52.4( 2,964,610 )21.6(

2010 6,988,858,431  16.0 6,689,987,155 )30.8( 1,880,219 )36.6(

2011 4,072,337,760 )41.7( 2,850,252,628 )57.4( 1,318,278 )29.9(

2012 2,384,058,415 )41.5( 1,978,813,878 )30.6( 975,016 )26.0(

2013 2,705,796,950  13.5 3,027,255,186  53.0 1,074,438  10.2

* Trading value of shares includes right issues' figures starting from 2006
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Table ( 5 )
Trading Value at the ASE by Sector

( JD )

Period Financial Services Industry Total

2004  2,403,764,844  379,944,408  1,009,541,799  3,793,251,050

2005  13,200,688,924  1,195,920,637  2,474,442,386  16,871,051,948

2006  11,570,201,564  942,189,854  1,697,479,173  14,209,870,592

2007  8,779,234,370  1,657,992,661  1,910,874,879  12,348,101,910

2008  9,638,936,814  5,422,241,866  5,256,835,871  20,318,014,551

2009  6,363,773,746  2,030,846,061  1,270,692,520  9,665,312,327

2010  4,174,112,697  1,744,663,490  771,210,968  6,689,987,155

2011  1,757,351,376  576,006,319  516,894,934  2,850,252,629

2012  1,189,542,872  403,893,684  385,377,323  1,978,813,879

2013  2,221,449,153  408,120,453  397,685,580  3,027,255,186

* Include right Issues'  figures starting from 2006
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Table ( 6 )
Top Ten Com

panies By Value Traded and Shares Traded in 2013

Value Traded
Shares Traded

C
om

pany's N
am

e
Value 

Traded  
(JD

)

%
 to  

Total 
Value

C
om

pany's N
am

e
 Shares 
Traded

%
 to  

Total 
Shares

A
R

A
B

 B
A

N
K

660,445,029
21.8

SPEC
IA

LIZED
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T C

O
M

PO
U

N
D

S
276,430,716

10.2

 AL-TAJAM
OUAT FOR CATERING AND HOUSING

211,328,991
7.0

AD-DULAYL INDUSTRIAL PARK &
 REAL ESTATE

178,176,150
6.6

SPEC
IA

LIZED
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T C

O
M

PO
U

N
D

S
183,070,181

6.0
 AL-TAJAM

OUAT FOR CATERING AND HOUSING
100,233,382

3.7

U
N

IO
N

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T C
O

R
PO

R
ATIO

N
139,628,910

4.6
A

R
A

B
 B

A
N

K
90,516,540

3.3

AD-DULAYL INDUSTRIAL PARK &
 REAL ESTATE

116,783,140
3.9

SU
R

A
 D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T &
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T PLC

86,815,793
3.2

DIM
ENSIONS:JORDAN AND EM

IRATES COM
M

ERCIAL
94,333,401

3.1
R

EA
L ESTATE D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T
79,158,490

2.9

U
N

IO
N

 LA
N

D
 D

EV
ELO

PM
EN

T C
O

R
PO

R
ATIO

N
74,328,765

2.5
INTERNATIONAL BROKERAGE & FINANCIAL MARKETS

73,147,599
2.7

B
A

N
K

 A
L-ETIH

A
D

66,457,119
2.2

COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
64,807,620

2.4

DEERA INVESTM
ENT & REAL ESTATE DEVELOPM

ENT CO
53,353,224

1.8
U

N
IO

N
 IN

V
ESTM

EN
T C

O
R

PO
R

ATIO
N

61,557,610
2.3

A
L-FATIH

O
U

N
 A

L-A
R

A
B

 FO
R

 IN
V

ESTM
EN

T
51,856,493

1.7
EL-ZAY

 R
EA

D
Y

 W
EA

R
 M

A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
IN

G
61,075,039

2.3

Total
1,651,585,251

54.6
Total

1,071,918,939
39.6
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Table ( 7 )
Top Ten Companies By Market Capitalization, End of 2013

Company's Name
Market   

Capitalization    
 ( JD)

% to The 
Whole Market

ARAB BANK 4,181,200,000 22.9

THE ARAB POTASH 2,337,100,000 12.8

THE HOUSING BANK FOR TRADE AND FINANCE 2,192,400,000 12.0

JORDAN TELECOM 1,025,000,000 5.6

JORDAN PHOSPHATE MINES 536,300,000 2.9

JORDAN ISLAMIC BANK 427,500,000 2.3

JORDAN KUWAIT BANK 389,000,000 2.1

BANK OF JORDAN 387,800,000 2.1

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT 350,000,000 1.9

CAIRO AMMAN BANK 278,000,000 1.5

Total 12,104,300,000 66.1
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Table (8 )
Trading Volume of Bonds Market

Period No. of Bonds Change
 Value of

Traded
 Change

Traded )%(  Bonds ( JD ) )%(

2004 10,355 )85.7( 6,031,856 )47.0(

2005 3,354 )67.6( 3,135,705 )48.0(

2006 1,225 )63.5( 1,868,010 )40.4(

2007 1,580  29.0 3,799,874  103.4

2008 417 )73.6( 605,819 )84.1(

2009 761  82.5 2,529,800  317.6

2010 140 )81.6( 140,075 )94.5(

2011 600  328.6 555,039  296.2

2012 0 )100( 0 )100(

2013 2,058 _ 2,039,728 _
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Table ( 9 )
Free Float W

eighted  Index 
( Decem

ber 1999 = 1000 )
2005

2006
2007

2008
2009

2010
2011

2012
2013

B
anks 

6171.3
4237.6

5122.2
4196.3

3646.8
3926.5

3475.3
3407.6

3888.8

Insurance
5738.7

3715.5
3690.1

3231.1
2838.0

2330.0
2089.8

1887.2
1793.2

Financial Services
16381.5

8248.8
9148.9

4796.2
3618.3

2803.7
1580.7

1653.0
1944.2

R
eal Estate

9093.2
7798.9

7823.7
3879.0

3131.0
2339.6

1939.5
1658.8

2026.2
Financials

6733.6
4486.3

5131.0
3609.1

3026.8
2911.7

2443.9
2363.6

2703.9

H
ealth C

are Services
1708.4

1317.4
961.8

881.7
821.1

949.2
873.8

900.0
962.7

Educational Services
3114.7

2611.9
3280.4

3275.9
2643.0

2636.3
2619.1

2952.3
3586.5

H
otels and Tourism

1972.6
1915.8

2181.9
1997.5

1784.1
1602.0

1409.4
1294.3

1218.5

Transportation
2075.4

1126.3
1363.1

850.0
914.0

743.0
445.1

467.0
451.9

Technology and C
om

m
unications

2320.7
1738.4

2392.7
1726.0

1792.4
1780.2

1829.8
1753.7

1356.7

M
edia

2921.4
2134.5

3858.9
3031.6

2806.7
2485.5

1556.2
856.8

607.7

U
tilities and Energy

3671.4
2955.7

4699.7
3863.5

4795.5
4414.8

4075.1
4017.9

4140.7

C
om

m
ercial Services

1736.4
1721.8

1889.5
1490.4

1557.9
1005.7

944.9
770.0

909.8

Services
2259.4

1833.1
2460.3

2025.6
2107.9

1897.2
1693.7

1651.1
1664.8

Pharm
aceutical and M

edical Industries
3325.4

2609.2
2374.6

1914.1
1994.6

2070.5
1656.6

1100.6
1341.3

C
hem

ical Industries
2054.6

1727.8
1952.8

1464.1
1639.1

1530.0
1338.7

1455.5
1786.4

Paper and C
ardboard Industries

1442.9
1283.6

1262.8
803.6

517.3
350.5

223.6
227.4

122.8

Printing and Pakaging
2055.3

2026.0
2487.1

1539.6
1459.0

1418.6
1431.3

1918.0
2118.4

Food and B
everages

2246.3
2103.5

2146.8
2308.4

1924.4
1509.5

1315.2
1120.9

1161.5

Tobacco and C
igarettes

4140.8
2566.0

2487.7
1608.3

2065.9
2659.1

3176.2
5220.7

9363.8

M
ining and Extraction Industries

2702.0
2535.7

4311.8
4380.0

4587.1
4210.9

3397.0
3391.5

2247.2

Engineering and C
onstruction

3365.7
3139.9

3362.1
2915.7

1973.4
1915.2

1819.6
2004.2

2233.6

Electric Industries
9907.7

7794.8
8864.8

5883.8
4909.7

3717.4
1909.3

1344.6
1921.2

Textiles, Leather and C
lothings

3124.7
2078.1

2554.7
2050.2

1965.9
1928.5

1982.4
1921.6

1953.4

G
lass and C

eram
ic Industries

2300.0
1181.3

1467.4
1050.1

978.9
735.2

660.5
870.4

993.7
Industries

2815.6
2372.3

3097.7
2736.0

2738.8
2576.6

2149.9
2176.6

1964.9
G

eneral Index
4259.7

3013.7
3675.0

2758.4
2533.5

2373.6
1995.1

1957.6
2065.8

C
hange(%

)
56.1 

(29.3)
21.9 

(24.9)
(8.2)

(6.3)
(15.9)

(1.9)
5.5 
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Table ( 10 )
Price Index, Weighted by Market Capitalization

( December 1991 = 1000 )
         ( Point )

Period Banks Insurance Services Industry General Change

(%)
2004 7230.9 3726.9 1874.4 2526.9 4245.6 62.4

2005 16892.0 7382.4 3332.5 2903.4 8191.5 92.9

2006 10704.7 4156.3 2286.6 2507.6 5518.1 (32.6)

2007 13886.7 4900.4 2740.3 4565.5 7519.3 36.3 

2008 11380.1 3821.3 1865.6 4560.1 6243.1 (17.0)

2009 9368.0 3943.6 1700.6 4563.2 5520.1 (11.6)

2010 8848.3 2103.5 1506.4 4841.7 5318.0 (3.7)

2011 7542.3 1703.7 1302.1 4427.4 4648.4 (12.6)

2012 7297.4 1251.0 1240.4 4606.4 4593.9 (1.2)

2013 8035.2 1214.1 1255.1 3210.4 4336.7 (5.6)
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Table ( 11 )
 Un-weighted Price Index 
( December 1991 = 1000 )

(Point)
Period Banks Insurance Services Industry General Change

(%)
2004 3543.1 2513.0 2237.9 854.2 1535.9 37.4 

2005 5584.4 5145.5 4383.2 862.2 2181.3 42.0 

2006 4088.8 3478.8 2967.1 708.0 1608.1 (26.3)

2007 4887.6 4004.7 3374.0 749.8 1798.1 11.8 

2008 3896.3 2859.8 2168.8 548.8 1235.5 (31.3)

2009 3328.7 2795.5 1804.8 495.3 1056.1 (14.5)

2010 3660.1 1276.7 1345.6 442.0 834.4 (21.0)

2011 3251.7 930.9 913.7 341.0 606.8 (27.3)

2012 3119.5 640.8 838.2 299.6 552.3 (9.0)

2013 3516.2 634.9 890.1 307.4 585.1 5.9 
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Table ( 12 )
Major Financial Data at the ASE

Period Market Cap. Net Income Book Value Cash Dividends No. of Listed

( JD ) After Tax (JD) ( JD ) (JD) Shares
2004 13,033,833,515 568,111,683 5,465,244,867 248,821,536 2,438,184,074

2005 26,667,097,118 1,188,745,976 7,348,705,691 443,537,476 3,016,035,799

2006 21,078,237,222 954,625,862 10,095,259,717 506,413,639 4,560,732,408

2007 29,214,202,327 1,224,369,157 11,654,623,917 609,409,310 5,393,462,524

2008 25,406,265,528 1,470,900,200 12,836,940,914 616,480,402 6,394,576,312

2009 22,526,919,428 750,132,245 13,626,874,513 576,881,469 6,725,549,375

2010 21,858,181,603 811,847,384 13,712,244,862 588,922,976 7,006,444,161

2011 19,272,757,327 1,086,936,096 13,547,990,002 842,732,877 6,951,136,015

2012 19,141,521,210 937,222,350 14,154,527,251 793,691,224 7,073,722,684

2013 18,233,491,417 N.A N.A N.A 7,152,011,974
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Table ( 13 )
Major Financial Ratios at the ASE

P/E Ratio P/BV Ratio
Dividend 

Yield
EPS Turnover

Period (time) (time) Ratio (JD) Ratio

(%) (%)
2004 31.108 2.677 1.735 0.233 58.193

2005 44.203 3.206 1.648 0.394 94.068

2006 16.747 2.917 2.321 0.209 101.135

2007 27.986 2.970 1.808 0.227 91.200

2008 18.820 2.177 2.526 0.226 91.546

2009 14.363 1.849 2.829 0.113 91.333

2010 26.345 1.667 2.725 0.116 102.177

2011 22.564 1.458 3.268 0.156 58.167

2012 15.575 1.456 4.591 0.132 33.886

2013 14.742 1.326 4.595 N.A 38.001



91

Amman Stock Exchange

Amman Stock Exchange

Table ( 14 )
Percentage of Non-Jordanian Ownership

in  Listed Companies  (%) *
Period Financial Services Industry General

2003 46.275 24.285 30.098 38.844

2004 47.441 25.593 36.791 41.264

2005 49.770 26.185 38.088 45.043

2006 47.733 36.553 43.709 45.531

2007 50.733 36.152 51.881 48.947

2008 52.102 33.811 53.347 49.247

2009 51.883 32.337 53.137 48.883

2010 51.996 32.963 54.739 49.562

2011 53.762 35.014 56.937 51.326

2012 54.273 34.609 57.275 51.743

2013 54.900 30.483 52.327 49.890

* As a percentage of market capitalization.
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Table ( 15 )
Trading of Non - Jordanian Investors

( JD )

B
uying

Selling
N

et 
Period

C
om

panies
Individuals

Total
C

om
panies

Individuals
Total

Investm
ent

A
rabs

N
on-A

rabs
A

rabs
N

on-A
rabs

A
rabs

N
on-A

rabs
A

rabs
N

on-A
rabs

2003
63,839,506

150,317,116
62,412,531

4,516,117
281,085,270

43,202,300
46,410,824

104,273,740
5,308,783

199,195,647
81,889,623

2004
176,915,409

39,328,128
139,329,866

24,763,147
380,336,550

74,499,878
68,659,710

156,913,851
11,306,508

311,379,947
68,956,603

2005
560,755,863

592,963,463
900,270,665

98,290,136
2,152,280,127

549,312,943
298,803,382

823,333,746
67,796,463

1,739,246,534
413,033,593

2006
571,209,771

257,711,265
1,083,052,841

83,117,249
1,995,091,127

407,324,510
169,235,477

1,145,366,561
92,555,599

1,814,482,147
180,608,979

2007
1,771,697,946

341,512,125
647,825,707

64,261,615
2,825,297,394

974,339,991
278,689,795

1,022,855,495
83,156,062

2,359,041,344
466,256,050

2008
1,539,320,339

925,927,152
1,694,115,142

60,472,901
4,219,835,534

1,261,684,443
798,476,867

1,768,425,543
81,433,501

3,910,020,354
309,815,180

2009
573,790,111

205,135,911
1,322,548,019

33,958,484
2,135,432,525

619,642,353
216,074,170

1,269,748,601
33,744,365

2,139,209,490
(3,776,965)

2010
402,966,237

215,244,378
398,179,505

20,202,934
1,036,593,054

425,854,720
115,033,239

493,703,976
16,598,988

1,051,190,924
(14,597,870)

2011
144,660,100

178,633,783
220,051,398

12,448,087
555,793,367

106,299,824
115,456,190

229,082,132
26,338,889

477,177,035
78,616,333

2012
115,629,097

88,572,774
112,101,538

6,644,231
322,947,640

74,311,572
47,774,188

151,533,378
11,678,112

285,297,250
37,650,390

2013
611,652,635

114,248,362
206,837,120

6,756,015
939,494,132

533,923,602
80,857,758

159,260,855
18,591,718

792,633,933
146,860,199
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Table ( 16 )
Transactions Through Securities Depository Center *

( JD )

Period
 Stocks

Bond
 Right
 issues

Total
Inheritance Inter-Family Others

 2004 57,525,825 25,533,911 30,931,340 _ _ 113,991,076

 2005 668,594,395 139,662,634 131,218,442 1,370,669 _ 940,846,140

 2006 237,471,399 158,518,697 439,915,359 41,200 3,206 835,949,861

 2007 72,221,589 43,267,214 675,475,100 10,000 3,136 790,977,039

 2008 89,240,224 47,383,502 481,416,119 10,000 12,166 618,062,011

 2009 92,673,770 37,868,144 87,468,441 0 5,000 218,015,354

 2010 37,029,252 17,311,643 87,724,772 250,000 437 142,316,104

 2011 40,657,412 24,745,312 255,900,109 277,500 57,932 321,638,265

 2012 30,092,222 7,125,840 6,036,694 0 17 43,254,773

 2013 43,960,950 14,401,245 50,531,830 250,000 0 109,144,025

*Source: Securities Depository Center.
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Table ( 17 )
Value of Primary Market Issues *

   ( JD )

Period Shares
 Treasury
 Bonds &

Treasury Bills

 Public
Institutions

 Corporate   
Bonds

Total

2003 56,164,822 600,000,000 29,000,000 105,354,000 790,518,822

2004 207,066,837 300,000,000 30,000,000 222,407,500 759,474,337

2005 888,825,951 540,000,000 74,000,000 60,600,000 1,563,425,951

2006 2,408,835,009 800,000,000 43,000,000 70,750,000 3,322,585,009

2007 885,771,902 1,142,500,000 46,000,000 168,700,000 2,242,971,902

2008 827,957,704 2,981,200,000 128,000,000 141,750,000 4,078,907,704

2009 317,321,922 4,191,000,000 138,500,000 151,750,000 4,798,571,922

2010 119,281,271 4,641,300,000 268,500,000 93,768,170 5,122,849,441

2011 136,671,251 4,110,900,000 801,380,000 38,000,000 5,086,951,251

2012 144,825,273 5,622,500,000 369,000,000 101,200,000 6,237,525,273

2013 45,979,161 5,493,395,000 180,000,000 81,500,000 5,800,874,161

*Source : Jordan Securities Commission 


